Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please
contact:
Martin Newton 020 8547 6086
martin.newton@kingston.gov.uk
This agenda is available on:
www.kingston.gov.uk
Published on 22 December 2020

Licensing Sub-Committee
Date:

Wednesday 6 January 2021

Time:

9:45 am

Place:
An online meeting that can be viewed at
https://www.youtube.com/c/kingstoncouncil/videos?view=2&live_vie
w=502
Members
The Sub Committee will consist of three of the following Members; Councillors: Stephanie Archer, Lorraine Dunstone, Simon Edwards, Ed Fram, Hilary
Gander, Dennis Goodship, Lesley Heap, Ian George, Katrina Lidbetter, Dave Ryder-Mills,
Malcolm Self, John Sweeney, Margaret Thompson, Jon Tolley and Olly Wehring.

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR code
with your smartphone.

Agenda
Changes to the Application
The applicants are advised of issues raised in representations from residents and the
Responsible Authorities - Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health, Noise and Health
and Safety. In discussions with the various parties on these the applicant may agree to
accept conditions and/or propose changes to the original application.
The law allows discussions to continue up to the time of the Licensing Sub-committee
hearing, often in good time before the hearing. As a result of these discussions, changes
to the original application may have been made and representations may have been
withdrawn. It will not always be possible to include these emendations in the agenda. The
hearing regulations require that should any party to the hearing wish to rely upon any
additional evidence, this should be served upon the Licensing Authority five days before
this hearing.
At the start of the hearing the Licensing Officer will explain any changes that the applicant
has made, conditions agreed with Responsible Authorities, and whether any additional
evidence has been served on the Licensing Authority.
Live stream of the meeting
This meeting will be live streamed on the Council’s you tube channel and the recording will
be available following the meeting.

1.

Appointment of Chair

2.

Declarations of Interest

Minutes
3.
To confirm that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2020 are a correct
record.
4.

Laxmi – 90 Tolworth Broadway, Surbiton, KT6 7HT

5.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

Appendix A

Exclusion of the Press and Public
6.
The following matters may be considered in private if the Committee agrees that, under
Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public are excluded from the
meeting on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph 1
of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed. This paragraph covers
information relating to any individual.

Procedure at Licensing Sub Committees

Hearing Procedure
40.

The Committee Members will be assisted, where necessary, by
(1)
(2)

Legal Advisor
Committee Secretary

41.

The two officers are there to give advice and procedural guidance to the Committee
and do not participate in the hearing or deliberations other than to clarify legal or
procedural matters. They are the only officers who retire with the Committee.

42.

A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the Committee who will expect
to hear from people in the following order:
1.
2.
3.
4.

The case-licensing officer will outline the circumstances of the application,
what representations have been made, and the outcome of any discussion.
The Applicants.
Responsible Authorities that are making representations.
Other persons who are making relevant representations. If there are a large
number of persons where appropriate they may be invited to select a
spokesperson to act on their behalf.

43.

Where notice has been given to a party seeking clarification of an issue, further
information supporting this application, representation, or notice may be given at the
hearing.

44.

In normal circumstances, the Chair will allow those that have submitted written
representations to have up to five minutes for each party to make his/her
submission but, in certain circumstances (e.g. where the issues are more complex
or detailed, with considerable number of objections or points), the Chair will allow
greater time for a person who is addressing the Committee on his/her
representation. The applicant will be allowed five minutes multiplied by the total
number of persons addressing the Committee or their representatives e.g. where
there are four such persons, the applicant will be allowed at least 4 x 5 minutes,
namely 20 minutes to address the Committee.

45.

During the hearing, members of the Committee are permitted to ask questions of
any party or other person who appears.

46.

The Chair will only permit cross-examination by the parties in those instances
where it is considered necessary for the clarification of an issue or to elicit further
information or if considered appropriate in a case following a request from any
party.

47.

At the end of the hearing each party will sum up their representation with the
applicant speaking last.

Failure to Attend
48.

If a party has informed the Council that they do not intend to attend or be
represented at the hearing, the hearing can proceed in their absence. If a party

who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a hearing the
Committee may:



Adjourn the hearing to specified date, where it considers this to be necessary in
the public interest; or
Hear the case in the party’s absence.

49.

Where an adjournment is made, the Council must notify the parties of the date, time
and place to which the hearing has been adjourned.

50.

Where a hearing takes place in the absence of the party, the Committee must
consider at the hearing the application, representations or notice made by that
party.

Making the Decision
51.

After having heard the representations and prior to retiring to make its decision, the
Committee may, if it wishes, seek the guidance of the case-licensing officer
regarding possible suitable conditions in respect of any particular application.

52.

The Committee must disregard any information given or evidence produced by a
party or witness which is not relevant to: the application; representations or notice;
or the promotion of the licensing objectives.

53.

The Committee has a duty to conduct its business impartially, not to predetermine
the issue and not to discuss matters with press or residents. In making its decision
the Committee must give reasons to support the decision. It must state, in respect
of premises licenses, why refusal or attachment of conditions is appropriate in order
to promote a particular licensing objective, and, in respect of all other applications,
the reasons why applications are refused or revoked.

Notification of the Decision
54.

The decision and reasons for the decision will be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting. These will be circulated and made available on the website. Generally
applicants will be sent a decision letter within five working days of the day of the
meeting, outlining the decision and any conditions that are attached to the
application. In addition, a letter will be sent to all those who made relevant written
representations in connection with the application.

55.

This will confirm the decision made; any conditions attached to an approval or the
reasons for refusal. Details of the respective appeal rights will also be sent with this
decision notice. In certain cases (e.g. temporary event notices and reviews of the
premises licence including emergency steps review and any appeal of such a
review), the Committee will give the decision orally on the day and the decision
notice will be sent in writing as soon as possible thereafter.

56.

The Committee must give its decision in accordance with the regulations.

Right to Appeal
57.

Applicants and the other parties to the hearing have specified appeal rights. The
appeal must be made to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the date of receipt

of notification of the decision by a party. Details of how to appeal and the grounds
on which an appeal may be made will be sent out with the notification letter.
Background papers – held by Gary Marson – Democratic Services – 020 8547 5021, email gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk
These documents can also be found on www.kingston.gov.uk
i.

Statement of Licensing Policy – 12 July 2016

ii.

Licensing Hearing procedures – 23 May 2018

A1
Licensing Sub Committee

Appendix A

6 January 2021
Laxmi – 90 Tolworth Broadway, Surbiton, KT6 7HT
Application for Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003
Report by the Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team Leader

PURPOSE
Members are to consider a review of the premises licence relating to Laxmi, 90 Tolworth
Broadway, Surbiton, KT6 7HT
DECISION TO BE MADE:
When undertaking a review of a premises licence, the following options are available to
the sub-committee:


the modification of the conditions of the premises licence,



the exclusion of a licensable activity from the scope of the licence,



the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence,



the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding three months, or



the revocation of the licence.



The sub committee may also decide to take no action


INTRODUCTION
1. On 10 November 2020 the Metropolitan Police, as responsible authority for the
prevention of crime and disorder, served on the Licensing Authority an application for a
review of the premises licence in respect of Laxmi, 90 Tolworth Broadway, Surbiton. A
copy of the application is attached at Annex 1.
2. The application states that a review of the premises licence has been initiated in order
to address the premises licence holders repeated failure to comply with conditions of
the premises licence, these actions are stated to have undermined the licensing
objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public
nuisance.
3. The premises benefits from a licence that permits the provision of regulated
entertainment (recorded music) and late night refreshment from 23:00 to midnight daily
and the sale by retail of alcohol (for consumption on the premises) from 10:00 hours to
midnight daily. A copy of the current premises licence is attached at Appendix 12 of
the application for review submitted by the Metropolitan Police.

A2

REVIEW PROCEDURE
4.

On receipt of a review application the Licensing Authority is required to affix a public
notice near to the premise advertising that a review of the premises licence has been
initiated. I can confirm that a notice was displayed on a lamppost next to the
premises, and officers have checked to ensure that the notice remained in place for
the duration of the consultation period. A notice was also displayed on the Council’s
noticeboard in the main Guildhall building.

5.

I can confirm all responsible authorities received a copy of the review application, the
Licensing Authority, in its capacity as responsible authority has made a representation
to the application which is attached at Annex 2.

6.

In addition, and in accordance with the Council’s Licensing Policy, three hundred and
thirty four addresses were contacted in writing and advised that a review application
had been received. Eleven representations have been received from Other Parties,
one in support of the review application and ten in support of the premises. The
representation in support of the review application makes reference to matters that
relate to the prevention of public nuisance licensing objective. Copies of the
representations are attached at Annex 3.

7.

Members will be aware that in order for a representation to be considered relevant it
must relate to one or more of the licensing objectives. Members will be aware that, in
making their decision, the matter of the impact of the licensable activities at the
premises upon the licensing objectives is something they must take into consideration,
however other matters such as car parking or the ‘need’ (for example) for a premises
cannot be considered.

LOCATION
8.

A map showing the approximate location of the premises is attached as Annex 4,
with photographs attached as Annex 5.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES
9.

In considering this report the Sub-Committee is required to take into account the
Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003,
and our Licensing Policy (relevant paragraphs are produced at Annex 6) and the
licensing objectives of:
•
•
•
•

The prevention of crime and disorder.
Public safety.
The prevention of public nuisance.
The protection of children from harm

DETERMINATION
10.

In making their decision in respect of the application, the Sub-Committee must have
regard to Statutory Guidance and the Councils’ own Statement of Licensing Policy
as well as to the representations made and the evidence heard. However, the SubCommittee must disregard any representations that do not relate to the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

A3
11.

The licensing sub-committee is asked to determine the application, having regard to
the representations received and any evidence heard at the hearing, in accordance
with the following options:
•
•
•
•
•
•

modify the conditions of the premises licence,
exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence,
remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence
suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months, or
revoke the licence
The sub committee may also decide to take no action

CONTENT OF ANNEXES TO THIS REPORT
Annex 1
Annex 2
Annex 3
Annex 4
Annex 5
Annex 6

Application for Review (including current premises licence at Appendix 12)
Representations from Responsible Authorities
Representations from Other Parties
Location Plan
Photographs of Location
Excerpts from Secretary of State’s Guidance and Kingston’s Statement
of Licensing Policy

BACKGROUND papers are held by Rebecca Whelton, Environmental Protection Officer 020 8547 5079, rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk

ANNEX 1

A4

PROTECTIVE MARKING
Form 691

Application for the Review of a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST




Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that
your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I PC 3108SW Lee Hopkins
apply for the review of a premises licence under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003
for the premises described in Part 1 below

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details
Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:
90 Tolworth Broadway
Post town:

Tolworth

Post code:
(if known)

KT6 7HT

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known):
Mr Paul Mathimaran- Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known):
PL0183

Part 2 – Applicant details
I am:
Please tick Yes

1

an individual, body or business which is not a responsible authority
(please read guidance note 1 and complete (A) or (B) below)

2

a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3

a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete section (A) below)

A5

PROTECTIVE MARKING

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Mr

Mrs

Miss

Surname:

Any other
title (e.g.
Rev.)

Ms
First Names:

I am 18 years old or over
Current postal address if different from premises address:

Post town:

Post code:

Daytime
Tel. No.:

Email:
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Name and Address:

Telephone Number (if any):
Email address: (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Name and Address:
Police Licensing Officer PC Lee Hopkins, Kingston Police Station, 5-7 High Street, Kingston Upon Thames, Surrey, KT1 1LB
Telephone Number (if any):

07436 246 206

Email address: (optional)

lee.hopkins@met.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes

1

The prevention of crime and disorder

2

Public safety

3

The prevention of public nuisance

4

The protection of children from harm

Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 2)
See attached word document-Laxmi Review Nov 2020

A6

PROTECTIVE MARKING
Please provide as much information as possible to support the application: (please read guidance note 3)
See attached word document- Laxmi Review Nov 2020.

A7

PROTECTIVE MARKING
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before?

(Please tick yes)

Day

Month

Year

If yes, please state the date of that application:
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them:
Representations made against variation to premises licence detailed in attached document.

A8

PROTECTIVE MARKING
Please tick Yes
I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and the premises
licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as appropriate.
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected.
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER
SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS APPLICATION.

Part 3 – Signatures (please read guidance note 4)
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 5). If signing
on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.
Signature:
Capacity:

Date:

3rd November 2020

Kingston Police Licensing Officer

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application: (please read guidance note 6)

Post town:

Post code:

Telephone Number (if any):

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address, your e-mail address (optional):

Notes for Guidance
1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other statutory bodies which
exercise specific functions in the local area.
2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
3. Please list any additional information or details, for example dates of problems which are included in the
grounds for review if available.
4. The application form must be signed.
5. An applicant’s agent (for example, solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have
actual authority to do so.
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.
Retention Period: 7 years
MP 321/12

A9

Introduction
This review application is to address the premises licence holders repeated failure to comply with conditions on
the premises licence. These failings have resulted in complaints from both local residents and the local authority
licensing team, which upon investigation have undermined the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime
and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance.
The Premises Licence Holder (PLH) is Mr Paul Mathimaran- Laxmi and Sisters Ltd, who was also shown as the
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) until the 12/01/2020. The current DPS is now Mr Thamotharmpillal
Sathiyamoorthy.

Time Line
22/03/2019
Numerous 999 calls were received stating that a male entered the premises, started an argument, and
subsequently brandished a knife. Victim inside the venue had been hit by knife but received no puncture
wounds. Suspect was chased by group outside and later detained by police. Crime Reference number
0403316/19. Officers downloaded CCTV at the time, which captured the incident. Police licensing team do not
have a copy of this CCTV.
11/04/2019
Police licensing team attended the venue to speak to the PLH. PLH was not present, however spoke to Mr
Jeganathan Jenopan who was the manager on duty, and was the manager during the incident. Mr Janopan
explained the male entered the venue with a group of friends to have an alcoholic drink. The male has then had a
verbal altercation with other customers in the venue. He left the restaurant and re-attended with a knife. Mr
Jenopan was advised by police at the time with regards to breaching an embedded restriction on his license.
Annex 1, condition 11 – “The licence is granted for premises structurally adapted and bona fide used, or
intended to be used, for the purpose of habitually providing the customary main meal at midday or in the
evening, or both, for the accommodation of persons frequenting the premises; and is subject to the condition
that alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to those persons taking table meals
there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to his meal.”
Mr Janopan was verbally advised that this crime may have been avoided if the group were refused entry as they
had no intention of eating.
Appendix 1- Copy of the redacted crime report
Appendix 2- Copy of original licence

08/05/2019
Royal Borough of Kingston (RBK) licensing team issued a warning letter to the PLH detailing that they were
concerned that the incident involving the knife breached the conditions on their licence. The letter was sent by
Environmental Officer Rebecca Whelton. The letter details that the PLH had been previously warned on two
separate occasions whereby the venue breached the same embedded restaurant condition. This was in December
2017 and April 2018.
Appendix 3-Warning Letter from RBK

24/07/2019
Information received from Environmental Protection Officer Rebecca Whelton, that there was an ASB related
noise complaint. Complainant states that the owner has private parties (essentially a lock in) which can last until
4am, smokers coming outside hanging around smoking, laughing then causing issues for nearby residents.
Appendix 4- Email from Rebecca Whelton.

Official

A10

02/08/2019
Venue attended by PC Styles who works in the local policing team and he stated that he attended the restaurant
and spoke to staff who informed him that there had been a staff party. They informed him that this was
not a regular occurrence. Although no breaches were identified, this did highlight a concern as to whether the
staff at the venue were being responsible causing a noise nuisance to the local residents.

03/09/2019
Application to vary a premises license received. Primarily to extend hours and remove a restaurant condition to
turn the venue into a bar.

30/09/2019
Police representations submitted, highlighting concerns that the current PLH has previously been in breach of
his licence, which raised concerns for the Metropolitan Police as to whether the current licence holder is
responsible in upholding the licence and licensable objectives.
Appendix 5- Police Reps

30/10/2019
Decision Notice - It was considered that the venue had previously been in breach of its Premises Licence, which
raised concerns as to whether the current PLH was responsible and operating in line with his licence and
upholding and promoting the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee was satisfied that the decision to refuse
the application was appropriate and proportionate to uphold the licensing objectives for the Prevention of Crime
and Disorder and the Prevention of Public Nuisance.
Appendix 6- Decision Notice

09/11/2019
Information received from the local authority from a concerned resident stating, “There was fight outside the
location with chairs from the restaurant thrown into the road. There were at least 10 people and it was very
loud and disruptive. They ran into the travel lodge when they heard a siren. I am very surprised that police have
not been called. Some of them were carrying bottles of drink and some were inhaling balloons”. Police
information search completed and established there were no CAD’s/records relating to this fight or location. The
incident was established to have taken place just after 9pm on the 9 th November 2019 and it was suspected that
the offenders may well have been patrons from the venue. A request was then put to the local policing team PC
Styles to collect the CCTV the following week. PC Styles attended to collect the CCTV, however it was
established afterwards that the recording that was burnt to a USB started 15 minutes after the alleged incident
and therefore showed no disturbance.
The PLH was contacted and informed that the wrong times were given, and a meeting was arranged for the
27/11/2019 to recover the correct recording and discuss any possible breaches.
Appendix 7- Complaint from concerned resident

27/11/2019
Meeting held at the venue to recover the CCTV, however the PLH had not burnt the CCTV onto a recording
device. When requested to complete the task, the PLH informed the police licensing team that there was only a
two week memory on the hard-drive, and the CCTV was now no longer in existence. The PLH denied that these
were customers of his venue, however without the CCTV in existence there was no way of establishing this.
There were no conditions in place to cover the venue’s CCTV, so no breaches of the license were established.
The Police Licensing team however were concerned that the PLH did not save and secure the CCTV when
asked. This would have assisted the police under the strand of the prevention of crime and disorder. The PLH
was again reminded of his responsibilities of promoting the licencing objectives.

Official

A11

09/01/2020
Environmental Protection Officer Rebecca Whelton provided a statement stating that she had evidenced the
venue breaching the restaurant condition. Mrs Whelton stated that she attended the venue on the 9 th January
2020 due to information that the venue was still breaching condition 11 of the license. She also referenced that
the venue was believed to be trading outside the hours permitted. On her arrival, she immediately witnessed a
group of five people drinking alcohol, and established that no food was ordered/purchased. The manager on
duty was Mr Jeganathan who was advised by the police licensing team when the breach occurred with the male
armed with a knife.
Appendix 8 – Statement from Rebecca Whelton

13/01/2020
DPS variation received. The PLH Mr Mathimaran requested to remove himself as the DPS and make the
designated premises supervisor Mr Thamotharampillai Sathiyamoorthy.
Appendix – 9 New license issued by RBK showing Mr Thamotharampillai Sathiyamoorthy as the new
DPS and also placing the embedded conditions into Annex 2 of the license.

03/04/2020
Application received to vary the premises license. The venue wished to remove the restaurant condition and
extend the hours to cover breakfast. Police representations along with other responsible authorities objected to
the variation, citing mainly the concerns of the PLH to be a responsible operator, previous breaches of the
license and that the venue is not suitable to be a bar due to its location.
Appendix 10 – Police Reps

01/06/2020
Decision notice. The sub-committee decided to partially grant the variation to the premises license, however
kept the restaurant condition in place. The sub-committee cited that they were mindful of past incidents where
breaches of the current premises license occurred with alcohol served to non-diners.
Appendix 11 - Decision Notice
Appendix 12 – New Premises Licence incorporating Annex 3 conditions imposed by the licensing subcommittee

11/09/2020
Information received from Environmental Protection Officer Marcella Basso, stating that neighbours have
complained that they have been kept awake by loud noise coming from the venue late at night, and there were
several people outside smoking. Mrs Basso responded by email to the venue requesting a copy of the external
and internal CCTV cameras and Noise Management Plan. CCTV conditions were placed on the license under
Annex 2 conditions 8 – 12 and are as follows:8. A CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in a good working order at the premises.
9. CCTV recordings shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to the police or
authorised officer of the Council upon request.
10. The CCTV system shall provide coverage of the customer entrance to the premises.
11. The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition standard images of
every person entering the premises.
12. The CCTV images shall be kept in an easily downloadable format.
The noise management plan was included by the Sub-committee at the previous hearing and was placed under
Annex 3 condition 28, and is as follows:28. A Noise Management Plan shall be formulated to include specific steps to effectively manage
noise arising from customers smoking outside the premises. The Plan shall be available at the
premises for inspection by enforcement officers of the Council or Police by within one month or
at any time thereafter of this licence being granted. The Plan shall be reviewed yearly.

Official

A12

A joint meeting with the RBK licensing team and the police licensing team was then arranged for the 30th
September 2020.

30/09/2020
Meeting at Laxmi with the PLH, DPS, Mr Kavali who acted as a friend/translator as well as both responsible
authorities. It was established by Mrs Basso during the meeting that the venue was in breach of their licence as
well as breaching COVID 19 regulations. The venue breached1. The amount of people allowed outside to smoke was in excess of what they were allowed on the
license. (Annex 3, condition 23)
2. There was no Noise Management policy in place. (Annex 3, condition 28)
3. Current license was not on display.
4. Customers were dancing inside the venue with no social distancing (COVID-19)
It was also established that the venue were still operating from their previous licence (which was currently on
display) even though the PLH was present at the previous hearing on the 26th May 2020. The PLH stated that he
was unaware that a new licence was granted with further conditions imposed. Police licensing officer
highlighted again his concerns that the PLH was not a responsible operator, and on discussion with Mrs Basso,
it was agreed to give the PLH one more final warning, with a full explanation that if he continued to breach
conditions on his licence, the police would have no other options than to request a standard review.
Notification of alleged offences paperwork completed at the time of the meeting covering the fact that his
current licence was not on display. Everything was clearly explained and was agreed and understood by the
PLH who had a translator present to ensure there was no breakdown in communications.
Appendix 13- Meeting Notes
Appendix 14- 694 issued

30/09/2020
Information received from RBK Licencing that one of their Environmental Protection Officers had passed
Laxmi, at around 16.00 hours (approximately 2 hours after the meeting concluded) where it was witnessed that
there were 2 males sat drinking outside without food. RBK Licensing team also notified the police that there
was an additional complaint received from a local resident complaining of noise late at night.
It was agreed that a secondary unannounced joint visit would be conducted on the 8th October 2020, to establish
if the venue breached the Restaurant condition – alcohol with a meal which is a condition retained by the subcommittee and placed on the license under Annex 3, condition 22 “The licence is granted for premises
structurally adapted and bona fide used, or intended to be used, for the purpose of habitually providing the
customary main meal at midday or in the evening, or both, for the accommodation of persons frequenting the
premises; and is subject to the condition that alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise
than to those persons taking table meals there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to his meal.”

08/10/2020
Joint visit to complete a CCTV review to establish if there were any breaches of the license. Full CCTV review
completed and the external camera shows two males arrive at the venue and sit outside. There was no table
service and one of the males walks into the venue and returns carrying 2 pints of beer. Throughout the viewing
the males were observed drinking only and between them consumed 2 to 3 pints each. The males were then
observed to leave the venue without any consumption of food. The camera also showed the PLH was present.
The review showed a clear breach of Annex 3 condition 22. The CCTV has been retained however the venue
were unable to download a continual stream and therefore 28 clips have been seized. This footage has been
placed onto Microsoft BOX and can be shared to the sub-committee on request.

Official

A13

13/10/2020
Police Licensing Team were copied in to a warning letter from The Local Authority that was issued to Mr
Mathimaram indicating that his business was breaching the health protection regulations and that was there was
no table service in operation.
Appendix 15- Covid 19 Table Service warning letter.

Summary
The Police Licensing Team maintains an Enforcement Policy which advocates a stepped approach when dealing
with complaints or non-compliance. Both responsible authorities have made every effort to work with the
business, however despite numerous words of advice and warnings the PLH has continued to breach his
premises licence and commit offences under the licensing act 2003. The PLH has been informed on two
separate occasion by the licensing sub-committee to abide by the restaurant conditions imposed, and has also
been advised on numerous occasions by the local authority and police to abide to the same restaurant condition
indicated on his license.
It is therefore the view of the Police Licensing Team that the PLH has shown a continued disregard for the
conditions set on his premises licence by the local authority and sub-committee, and by operating the venue
unlawfully has failed to uphold the licensing objectives, in particular he prevention of crime and disorder and
the prevention of public nuisance.
Given that the premises licence holder has an inability and unwillingness to comply with the conditions
currently attached to the licence, it is the opinion of the Metropolitan Police that it is unlikely that the imposition
of further conditions or a reduction of the hours permitted for licensable activity would be complied with.
The Police Licensing Team therefore request that the licensing sub-committee consider revoking this premises
licence.
PC Lee Hopkins 3108SW

Official

APPENDIX 1

A14
Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste
CIV N BENTLEY 84056
CR:0403316/19 CrType:C Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-9 Status:U Press:N Class:S/ABH GLU:VK
Supervision
Screening Decision: IN
Main
IU:
Crime Type:
Allegation (Prefix):
Allegation:
Committed on/from Date:
Committed to Date:
Reported Date:
How Notified:
Restricted?
By:
Restriction Reason:

SWBCU SW Basic Command Unit
C
H/O Crime Type:

FRI

9

22/03/2019 19:34

FRI
22/03/2019 19:34
NP Phone Call to Police
Date:

Location
OMPD?
Address:
O/S,Laxmi 90,TOLWORTH BROADWAY,
SURBITON,SURREY,KT6 7HT

CAD 6897/22MAR19
SW52L – PC BARNES 2840SW & PC 3165SW
Background
Police received numerous calls to a male who was armed with a knife on TOLWORTH BROADWAY.
This male was apparently chased by members of the public towards the car park at TOLWORTH
ROUNDABOUT.
On arrival at the location, an initial area searched proved negative. On speaking to passers-by the
incident started at the LAXMI restaurant on the BROADWAY.
Inside, a male by the name of Jack PURTON stated that the suspect had come into the restaurant and
started an argument. He brandished a knife and was then chased by the group of males towards M&S,
where they lost him. PURTON sustained a slight injury where he was apparently hit with the knife.
There were no puncture wounds and he declined LAS. He also refused to provide any statement and to
assist Police with their investigation.
Staff in LAXMI informed officers that incident had been captured on their CCTV.
A further call from a member of the public identified the male as being in BROADOAKS, behind
TOLWORTH BROADWAY.
DENT was seen and stopped in BROADOAKS and stopped and searched. This was a negative result
and the knife has not been recovered.
DENT was arrested for AFFRAY by PC AL-KANANI
-----Evidence
Although there were numerous 999 calls, no parties wished to provide statements.
CCTV from LAXMI, shows DENT pull a knife out from his waistband and is being supplied by the
restaurant.
PC BARNES will do an exhibiting statement for the clip that shows DENT produce a knife from his
waistband.

APPENDIX 2

A15

Licence Number

LICENSING ACT 2003

PL0183

PREMISES LICENCE
LICENSING AUTHORITY

Licensing Team
3rd Floor Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston Upon Thames
KT1 1EU

PART 1 – PREMISES DETAILS
POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

LAXMI
90 TOLWORTH BROADWAY
TOLWORTH
KT6 7HT

TEL: 020 8399 9165

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE



The sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

The sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Saturday 10:00am to midnight
Sunday 12:00pm to 23:30pm

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF SUPPLIES:

The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Normal Opening Hours
Monday to Saturday 10:00am to 00:30am the day following
Sunday 12:00 to Midnight

Printed on: 03/11/2020 10:50

Page 1 of 8

A16
Licence Number

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE

PL0183

PART 2
NAME, REGISTERED ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER & EMAIL OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
90 Tolworth Broadway
Tolworth
KT6 7HT

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER: COMPANY NUMBER OR CHARITY NUMBER

10589552

NAME, ADDRESS & TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES
LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Mr Paul Mathimaran

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER & ISSUING AUTHORITY OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR

No:
Issuing Authority:
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Ms Rebecca Whelton
Environmental Protection Officer

Date First Granted: 4 August 2005
Issue Date (this copy): 6 July 2017

Printed on: 03/11/2020 10:50

Page 2 of 8

A17

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE

Licence Number

PL0183

ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS
For supply of alcohol [Licensing Act 2003 Section 19]
1.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premise licence:
(a) at a time when there is no designated premise supervisor
(b) at a time when the designated premise supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended

2.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a personal licence.

For the supply of alcohol [The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions)
Order 2010 as amended by the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions)
(Amendment) Order 2014]
3. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises.
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to–
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness
in any favourable manner.
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a
disability).
4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.
5. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an
age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licences must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age

Printed on: 03/11/2020 10:50

Page 3 of 8

A18

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE

Licence Number

PL0183

verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth
and either:(a) A holographic mark or
(b) An ultraviolet feature.
6. The responsible person shall ensure that–
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures–
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.
Minimum Drinks Pricing [Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order
2014]
7. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
8.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—
P = D + (DxV)
where—
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii)
V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence—
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises
in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question;
and

Printed on: 03/11/2020 10:50

Page 4 of 8

A19

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE

Licence Number

PL0183

(e) “valued added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.
9.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.

10. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the
next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added
tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.
Embedded restrictions
11. The licence is granted for premises structurally adapted and bona fide used, or intended
to be used, for the purpose of habitually providing the customary main meal at midday or
in the evening, or both, for the accommodation of persons frequenting the premises; and
is subject to the condition that alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises
otherwise than to those persons taking table meals there and for consumption by such a
person as ancillary to his meal.
12. The above condition shall not extend the supply of alcohol on the premises whether
inside or outside the permitted hours in any case where no person shall except permitted
hours;
a) Himself or by his servant or agent sell or supply to any person in licensed premises
or in premises in respect of which a club is registered any alcohol whether to be
consumed on or off the premises or
b) Consume or take from such premises any alcohol
13. Suitable beverages other than alcohol (including drinking water) shall be equally
available for consumption with or otherwise as ancillary to meals served in the licensed
premises
14. Alcohol may be sold or supplied:
a) On the following weekdays, namely Monday to Friday, other than Christmas Day, or
Good Friday, 10:00am to midnight
b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, or Good Friday: 12 noon to 23:30pm
c) On Christmas Day; 12 noon to 23:30pm
d) On New Year’s Eve, from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start
of permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the
following day, until midnight on 31 December)

Printed on: 03/11/2020 10:50

Page 5 of 8

A20

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE

Licence Number

PL0183

15. Alcohol may be sold or supplied [for one hour following the hours set out above and] [on
Christmas day, between 15:00pm and 19:00pm] to persons taking table meals in a part
of the premises usually set apart for service of such persons and for consumption by
such a person in that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal. For other purposes
or in other parts of the premises the hours set out above shall continue to apply
16. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied unless it is paid for before or at the time when it is
sold or supplied, except alcohol sold or supplied with and for consumption at a meal
supplied at the same time, is consumed with the meal and paid for together with the
meal.

ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE
17. A plan dated 03/05/2017 is appended to and forms part of this licence.

ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

None

Printed on: 03/11/2020 10:50

Page 6 of 8

A21
Licence Number

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY

PL0183

LICENSING AUTHORITY

Licensing Team
3rd Floor Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston Upon Thames
KT1 1EU

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

LAXMI
90 TOLWORTH BROADWAY
TOLWORTH
KT6 7HT

TEL: 020 8399 9165

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE



The sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

The sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Saturday 10:00am to midnight
Sunday 12:00pm to 23:30pm

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF SUPPLIES:

The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Normal Opening Hours
Monday to Saturday 10:00am to 00:30am the day following
Sunday 12:00pm to midnight

Printed on: 03/11/2020 10:50

Page 7 of 8

A22

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY

Licence Number

PL0183

NAME, REGISTERED ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER & EMAIL OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
90 Tolworth Broadway
Tolworth
KT6 7HT

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER: COMPANY NUMBER OR CHARITY NUMBER

10589552

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Mr Paul Mathimaran

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

There are no restrictions.
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Ms Rebecca Whelton
Environmental Protection Officer

Date First Granted: 4 August 2005
Issue Date (this copy): 6 July 2017

Printed on: 03/11/2020 10:50

Page 8 of 8

APPENDIX 3

A23
Kingston and Sutton Shared Environment Service
Regulatory Services
Assistant Director - Matthew Hill

My Ref:
EH-LIC/PL0183
Your Ref:
Enquiries to: Rebecca Whelton
Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
Mr Paul Mathimaran
90 Tolworth Broadway
Surbiton
KT6 7HT
8 May 2019

Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU
:
E-Mail:
Website:

020 8547 5080
licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk

Dear Mr Mathimaran,
LICENSING ACT 2003 – LAXMI, 90 TOLWORTH BROADWAY, SURBITON, KT6 7HT
The Licensing Authority has received information from the Metropolitan Police that on 22
March 2019 an incident took place within the premises during which a male patron produced
a bladed instrument (knife).
I am aware that the Police investigation is ongoing, however, the incident has raised
concerns regarding possible breaches of the premises licence, namely disregard for
condition 11 of the premises licence which requires that:
“Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to those
persons taking table meals there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary
to his meal.”
Having been warned twice previously regarding the requirement that alcohol be sold only
with food (in December 2017 following a visit to the premises by myself and PC J Hartland,
and again in April 2018) you as licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor and your
staff should be well aware that to sell alcohol to persons not consuming a table meal is a
breach of the premises licence and a criminal offence under Section 136 of the Licensing Act
2003.
Information provided by the Police states that a member of staff confirmed to Officers after
the incident took place that alcohol was sold to the male in question and his friends without
the purchase of any food.
The Licensing Authority maintains an Enforcement Policy which advocates a stepped
approach when dealing with complaints or non-compliance. In the first instance we will seek
to work with businesses and operators to achieve compliance. Given that you have been
warned previously regarding the requirement to serve alcohol only with food, should we
receive any evidence that indicates that the premises licence is being breached, the
Authority will have no other option than to take formal enforcement action which could
include a review of the premises licence and prosecution.
It is my duty to advise you that carrying on licensable activity otherwise than in accordance
with an authorisation (past permitted hours or contrary to any condition of the premises
licence) is an offence under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003, for which a person can
be prosecuted. The maximum penalty on conviction of such an offence is 6 months
imprisonment and/or an unlimited fine.

A24
I trust that the matters raised in this letter will be addressed appropriately.
Should you wish to discuss this matter further please contact me on the above telephone
number.
Yours Sincerely,

Rebecca Whelton
Environmental Protection Officer

cc- Kingston Police Licensing Office

A25

APPENDIX 4

From: Styles Benjamin S - SW-CU <Benjamin.S.Styles@met.police.uk>
Sent: 02 August 2019 15:35
To: Hopkins Lee - SW-CU <Lee.Hopkins@met.police.uk>; Wilding Claire E - SW-CU
<claire.E.Wilding@met.police.uk>
Subject: RE: Laxmi
Hello,
For your info I attended Laxmi today and they stated that a couple of weeks ago they had a private
staff party and this isn’t a regular occurrence. I’ve never had a complaint about this place before
although I was aware of suggestions that they were serving alcohol without food which may have
been one of their licence conditions at the time, I am unsure if that is the case now.
We’ll find out tonight but there was some intel of the SUK gang attending there tonight for a
gathering, VCTF will be monitoring this evening.
Regards
Ben

PC Benjamin Styles 2373SW | DWO Tolworth and Hook Ward
 Facebook: Tolworth and Hook Rise Police
 Twitter:@MPSTolworth
 Telephone: 0208 721 2045

 Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail
From: Hopkins Lee - SW-CU
Sent: 29 July 2019 15:20
To: 'RBK Licensing' <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>; SNT VK - Tolworth & Hook Rise <SNTVK.Tolworth&HookRise@met.police.uk>; Wilding Claire E - SW-CU < >
Subject: RE: Laxmi
Hi Beckie,
Apologies for the delay, I have just come back from some annual leave.
I will forward this to the local SNT officers and ASB officer.

A26

Dear SNT colleagues and Claire, please can you have a look at this one
Kind regards
Pc Lee Hopkins 3108SW
Licensing Officer
Kingston Police Station
m: 07436 246206
a: 5 – 7 High Street, Kingston, KT1 1LB
w: Lee.Hopkins@met.police.uk

From: rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk [mailto:rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk] On Behalf Of
RBK Licensing
Sent: 24 July 2019 12:30
To: Hopkins Lee - SW-CU <Lee.Hopkins@met.police.uk>
Subject: Laxmi

Hi Lee,
We've received a complaint about Laxmi but it's not really Licensing, more ASB/Noise.
Complainant states that the owner has private parties (essentially a lock in which is permitted
assuming no alcohol is being sold etc) which can last until 4am, smokers coming outside
hanging around smoking and laughing then cause issues for nearby residents.
Any chance you could alert the local officers in case they are in the area and can have a look?
It sounds like ASB to us.
I will also pencil in another out of hours just to make sure that the licence is being adhered to,
but I think the issues the complainant raises don't conflict with their licence.
Many thanks,
Beckie
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

A27

APPENDIX 5

Licensing office

Licensing Officers
Royal Borough of Kingston
Guildhall 2
Kingston upon Thames
Surrey KT1 1EU

5-7 High Street,
Kingston,
Surrey.
KT1 LB
Telephone: 07342 081741
Facsimile:
E-mail: vklicensingoffice@met.police.uk
www.met.police.uk

26th September 2019
Laxmi, 90 Tolworth Broadway, Tolworth, KT6 7HT

Dear Sir or Madam,
I write with regard to the above application, which is to vary a premises licence in accordance
the Licensing Act 2003.The applicant currently holds an existing licence PL0183.
The above application seeks to:1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Remove conditions from the licence.
Include the provision for recorded music
Include the provision for late night refreshment
Amend the opening hours of the premises.
Amend the hours for the sale of alcohol

The Metropolitan Police Service makes objections to the application because it would
undermine both the Crime Prevention and Public Nuisance licensing objectives.
The premises is a restaurant situated on Tolworth Broadway. The immediate area has a
mixture of other similar businesses comprising of restaurants, shops and takeaways that are
located on the ground floor. Above these are numerous residential properties. The venue itself
is located on a busy arterial road into Kingston, which becomes much quieter during the late
evening/night time. The road is heavily serviced by busses during the day/evening however
there is an extremely limited service beyond midnight.
In close proximity to Laxmi is a bar that has provisions on its licence to remain open for
regulated entertainment and late night refreshments until 02.00 hours on certain days, it has
however a terminal time of midnight for the sale of alcohol on every evening, and it can noted
on their website that their close for trade no later than midnight on certain evenings.
Having reviewed the application, there is a request that the “restaurant condition” be removed
and a substantial increase the hours of licensable activities from midnight to 03.00 hours on
Thursday to Saturday and 02.00 hours throughout the remainder of the week. However, this
would effectively change the primary use of these premises from being a restaurant to a bar
as there would be no requirement now to consume food in order to purchase alcohol.

A28

It would be the view of the Metropolitan Police that by varying this premises licence, crime,
disorder, and public nuisance would increase, both the premises and the surrounding vicinity.
There has been no mention on the application about steps on how the venue will achieve the
licensing objectives, and it appears that there are no measures/strategies in place to manage
the safety of their customers dispersal late at night into a large residential area. There is also
no mention how the venue will manage noise and safety of their patrons when smoking outside
the front of the venue, and it is a concern of the metropolitan police that even with conditions
in place that this would be unachievable.

Crime at the Venue
With regards to crime at the venue, there is one incident of note, and that on the 22nd March
2019, a male entered the premises and an argument took place inside the venue. This
resulted in the male brandishing a large knife. A witness inside venue apparently had been
struck with the knife but no puncture wounds occurred.
Due to the severity of the incident, the police-licensing officer attended the venue and spoke
to the manager on duty who stated that the male was with a group of friends to drink alcohol
only. This in effect breached condition 11 of the premises licence, which is: “The licence is
granted for premises structurally adapted and bona fide used, or intended to be used,
for the purpose of habitually providing the customary main meal at midday or in the
evening, or both, for the accommodation of persons frequenting the premises; and is
subject to the condition that alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises
otherwise than to those persons taking table meals there and for consumption by such
a person as ancillary to his meal.”
Because of this breach, the local authority licencing team were contacted and a warning letter
was sent to the licence holder. The letter is attached with these representations and is
exhibited as appendix A. However citing to paragraph 4 of the letter which states “Having
been warned twice previously regarding the requirement that alcohol be sold only with
food (in December 2017 following a visit to the premises by myself and PC J Hartland,
and again in April 2018) you as licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor and
your staff should be well aware that to sell alcohol to persons not consuming a table
meal is a breach of the premises licence and a criminal offence under Section 136 of
the Licensing Act 2003.”
It appears that the venue has previously been in breach of its licence, which raises concerns
for the metropolitan police as to whether the current licence holder is responsible in upholding
his licence and licensable objectives.
The metropolitan police would also like to bring to the sub-committees attention a complaint
received by the local authority dated on the 24th July 2019. The Complainant states, “That the
owner has private parties which can last until 4am, smokers coming outside hanging
around smoking and laughing then causes issues for nearby residents.”
The dedicated ward officer (DWO) attended the venue in relation to the complaint and staff at
the venue confirmed that they had in fact had a staff party. During the correspondence with
the DWO he has suggested that he had received intelligence that the venue had been serving
alcohol without a meal.
Police are unaware at this time if any licensable activity has taken place during this suggested
period however it again raises concerns to the metropolitan police that staff at the venue have
very little regards to the prevention of public nuisance and show little concerns for the local

A29

residents.
In conclusion the revised guidance issued under section 182 of the licensing act 2003, “Effects
of cumulative impact assessments” section 14.42 states “The absence of a CIA does not
prevent any responsible authority or other person making representations on an
application for the grant or variation of a licence on the grounds that the premises will
give rise to a negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives,
However, in each case it would be incumbent on the person making the representation
to provide relevant evidence of cumulative impact.” Therefore, the metropolitan police as
responsible authority believe that should this application be granted the primary use of the
premises would change from being a restaurant to a premise where alcohol could be
consumed without the requirement to purchase food. This change of use by variation of the
premises licence will ultimately lead to an increase of incidents as mentioned above of crime
and disorder. In addition, public nuisance will increase both at the premises and nearby with
the large extension of hours, all of this causing a negative cumulative impact.
It is the view of the metropolitan police that should this application be granted the licensing
objectives would be undermined and I would respectfully ask that this application is
refused.

Yours sincerely,

Pc Hopkins 3108SW
Licensing Officer

A30

APPENDIX 6

DECISION NOTICE
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
22 October 2019
Laxmi – 90 Tolworth Broadway, Surbiton, KT6 7HT
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered an application for variation of the Premises
relating to “Laxmi Bar and Restaurant” at 90 Tolworth Broadway, Surbiton, made on 2
September 2019 by Arka Licensing Consultants on behalf of Laxmi and Sisters Ltd.
The Application sought a variation to their existing Premises Licence to permit:


the sale by retail of alcohol for consumption on the premises, Sunday to
Wednesday from 10:00 to 01:30 the following morning and Thursday to
Saturday from 10:00 to 02:30 the following morning;



the provision of recorded music (indoors) and the provision of late night
refreshment, Sunday to Wednesday from 23:00 to 02:00 the following
morning and Thursday to Saturday from 23:00 to 03:00 the following morning;



The application also sought to remove all embedded restrictions imposed on
the existing licence, to be replaced with new conditions detailed in Annex 4 of
this report.

At the beginning of the hearing, the Applicant’s representative informed the Licensing
Sub-Committee that they wished to make an amendment to the hours sought in their
application as follows:


the sale by retail of alcohol for consumption on the premises, Sunday to
Wednesday from 10:00 to 00:30 hours the following morning and Thursday to
Saturday from 10:00 to 01:00 hours the following morning;



the provision of recorded music (indoors) and the provision of late night
refreshment, Sunday to Wednesday from 23:00 to 00:30 hours the following
morning and Thursday to Saturday from 23:00 to 01:00 hours the following
morning;



Opening hours to be Sunday to Wednesday from 06:00 to 01:00 hours the
following morning and Thursday to Saturday from 06:00 to 01:30 hours the
following morning;

The Licensing Officer’s report confirmed that 468 addresses were consulted in writing
and informed that an application had been received. Five valid representations were
received from Other Parties. The representations referred to matters that related to
the prevention of public nuisance and prevention of crime and disorder licensing
objectives.

A31

The Metropolitan Police as the Responsible Authority for the prevention of crime and
disorder, the Council’s Environmental Protection Officer (Pollution Control) as
Responsible Authority for the prevention of public nuisance and Director of Public
Health made representations against the application.
Having considered the application for variation of the Premises Licence for “Laxmi”,
pursuant to the Licensing Act 2003, ensuring that the licensing objectives were
promoted under Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003, having considered the written
representations of those that submitted Representations and the written and oral
representations made by the Applicant and Responsible Authorities present, having
regard to the Secretary of State’s Guidance (issued under section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003) and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and relevant case law, the
Licensing Sub-Committee decided to REFUSE the application for the reasons set out
below.
Consideration by Licensing Sub-Committee
The Environmental Protection Officer (Pollution Control) addressed the Licensing SubCommittee to raise concerns with the amended application, in particular the use of the
Premises as a bar with consumption of alcohol and the addition of music late into the
night. It was highlighted that this was out of character to the area as no premises in
the vicinity served alcohol for consumption on the premises beyond midnight and there
would be the added concern of noise escape from the entrance as there was no lobby
to act as a natural barrier when the door opened. Furthermore there was insufficient
evidence of how the outside smoking area, located at the front of the premises, would
be effectively managed by the Applicant. There was concern that this would increase
the risk of anti-social behaviour and noise disturbance late at night.
The Public Health Officer reiterated their concerns in relation to the application and
requested that the Licensing Sub-Committee refuse the application on the grounds
of public safety. It was explained that the London Ambulance Service recorded 47
assaults within 500 metres of the premises. In addition there were 17 reported
incidents related to ‘gun, knife and weapon’ injuries within 500 metres of the
premises and it was considered that any increase in operational hours of the
premises would increase the likelihood of alcohol related incidents and anti-social
behaviour.
Esther Drabkin-Reiter, the legal Counsel representing the Metropolitan Police,
summarised the history of the premises and the main concerns that the Police had
with regard to the application. It was argued that the premises was situated in a largely
residential area within Tolworth Broadway, which did not have existing premises
serving alcohol beyond midnight in the locality. It was explained that the granting of
this application, irrespective of the amended hours would undermine the prevention of
public nuisance Licensing Objective as it would lead to an increased risk of noise
disturbance. It was suggested that if the business wished to hold events in the future
that they use the provision of Temporary Event Notices (TENs) to show that these
events could be run responsibly.
An overview of the history of the premises and the locality was highlighted, including
the significant number of incidents within 500 metres of the premises in which the

A32

emergency services were called. Particular attention was drawn to a recent incident
on 22 March 2019 in which police were called to the venue, where an individual had
entered the premises and attacked someone with a knife. It was explained that,
because of that investigation, evidence arose of a breach of the existing Premises
Licence, as alcohol had been sold without being ancillary to food. There were incidents
of a breach of condition 11 that required alcohol to be sold ancillary to food in 2017
and 2018. The Metropolitan Police were concerned that the breach of conditions
indicated that the premises had been managed in such a way that an increase in
operational hours of the Premises would have a detrimental effect on the safety of
residents in the area, would increase those on the street late at night with a potential
for public nuisance and could have an effect on crime and disorder, where there was
a track record of issues on Tolworth Broadway and albeit on a few occasions within
this premises.
There was additional concern raised with regard to the limited public transport
connections in the area and the effective dispersal of patrons late into the evening. It
was highlighted there was a bus service only up to midnight in this area, so the
dispersal of patrons at the end of the evening would be reliant on private taxi hire or
customers driving, which in turn could increase the risk of drink-driving and noise
nuisance from car door slamming and inebriated customers. It was considered that
this would create an unwanted noise nuisance in this residential area, especially in the
flats above each shop in the Broadway and others in the proximity. Furthermore there
was evidence of this already for the residents of the same building who complained of
music from 00.00 to 3am or 4am such that this was seen as an existing problem for
residents when the premises, even though it was suggested that these were late-night
‘private staff parties’ as outlined in resident objections.
The Licensing Sub-Committee noted the concerns raised by the resident objectors
with regards to the history of the premises and the problems associated with noise
nuisance.
REASONS
In reaching its decision, the Licensing Sub-Committee took into account the written
representations and oral representations from the Responsible Authorities and
members of the public and the written and oral representations on behalf of the
Applicant.
It was considered that the venue had previously been in breach of its Premises
Licence, which raised concerns as to whether the current Premises Licence holder
was responsible and operating in line with his licence and upholding and promoting
the licensing objectives. The Licensing Sub-Committee also took into consideration
that the hours sought in the application were out of character for the area as the
location was predominately residential.
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered that the applicant did not explain in
sufficient detail how they would manage the extended hours sought, especially in
relation to the smoking area and how they would prevent crime and disorder or noise
nuisance late at night. The Licensing Sub-Committee noted the Applicant
representatives’ offer that the Applicant could provide an SIA door supervisor on site

A33

as well as a noise limiter for the music system, but considered there was insufficient
detail provided of how this would be implemented and how this would prevent the
issues aforementioned.
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered all of the relevant evidence made available
to it and in doing so took into account the Licensing Act 2003 (and its Regulations),
the Home Office Guidance, the Council’s Licensing Policy, and the licensing
objectives, in particular ensuring that the licensing objectives of the Prevention of
Crime and Disorder and the Prevention of Public Nuisance were met.
The Licensing Sub-Committee noted that the views of the Metropolitan Police and
Pollution Control Officer that the additional hours of opening would lead to noise and
disturbance in the area which is includes a large residential element to the shops on
the Broadway and which is generally quiet at night time. The Licensing Sub-Committee
was concerned that the increase of operational hours would have a cumulative impact
in respect of the promotion of the Licensing Objectives that would affect residents who
lived in close proximity to the premises and would change the town late at night with
people remaining in the area late at night rather than dispersing.
The Licensing Sub-Committee also noted the concerns of the Responsible Authorities
that an extension of the opening hours to 01.30 or 2.30 at the premises could further
add to crime and disorder in the area and public nuisance.
The Licensing Sub-Committee took into account the written representations from local
residents as to the noise and disturbance they currently experience and the likelihood
this would increase if the variation were granted.
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that the decision to refuse the application is
appropriate and proportionate to uphold the licensing objectives for the Prevention of
Crime and Disorder and the Prevention of Public Nuisance.

A34

APPENDIX 7

From: Hopkins Lee - SW-CU
Sent: 11 November 2019 12:20
To: Styles Benjamin S - SW-CU <Benjamin.S.Styles@met.police.uk>
Cc: Marcella Basso <marcella.basso@kingston.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: Laxmi Tolworth Broadway
Hello Ben
Please can I ask a favour……..
Laxmi as discussed had a TEN over the weekend and it appears there may have been a few issues as
you can see from the email link. I have checked the overnights and NO crime appears to have been
recorded, however when you are next in and have a moment please can I ask you to pop down to
the venue and pull the CCTV for both inside and outside for the date given.
Please seize from 20.45 to midnight.
I can sit down with a large coffee and watch!
Thanks for your help
Lee

Pc Lee Hopkins 3108SW
Licensing Officer
Kingston Police Station
m: 07436 246206
a: 5 – 7 High Street, Kingston, KT1 1LB
w: Lee.Hopkins@met.police.uk

From: marcella.basso@kingston.gov.uk [mailto:marcella.basso@kingston.gov.uk] On Behalf Of RBK
Licensing
Sent: 11 November 2019 12:10
To: Hopkins Lee - SW-CU <Lee.Hopkins@met.police.uk>
Subject: Fwd: Laxmi Tolworth Broadway

Hi Lee,
Please see below.
Kind regards,
Marcella
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

A35

---------- Forwarded message --------From: Claire Dossi <
Date: Mon, 11 Nov 2019 at 11:56
Subject: Re: Laxmi Tolworth Broadway
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
It was just after 9pm on Saturday Night. Following that, Fireworks were let off in the street
around 11pm. This may have been a different group , but was quite frightening as they were
right outside my window
Many Thanks

On Mon, 11 Nov 2019 at 10:21, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:
Dear Claire,
Can you please confirm the exact time of the fight, so the Police can check their records?
Many thanks.
Kind regards,
Marcella
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Sat, 9 Nov 2019 at 21:37, Claire Dossi wrote:
There has just been a fight outside Laxmi with chairs from the restaurant thrown into the
road
There were at least 10 people and it was very loud and disruptive. They ran into the travel
lodge when they heard a siren. I'm very surprised that police haven't been called.
Some of them were carrying bottles of drink and some were inhaling balloons
From a concerned resident

A36

APPENDIX 8

From: Rebecca Whelton <rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk>
Sent: 14 April 2020 12:11
To: Hopkins Lee - SW-CU <Lee.Hopkins@met.police.uk>
Subject: Re: Laxmi

Morning Lee,
Hannah has some photos on her work phone. From my notes I can confirm "I visited on 9
January 2020 at 16:55, from the pavement outside, I noted that there was a group of
approximately 5 persons seated at a table in front of the window inside the premises. The
individuals were drinking what appeared to be wine and beer. There was no food on the table
and no cutlery or other items to suggest that food had been ordered or previously consumed
by the group. I went in and spoke with Mr Jeganathan who confirmed he was in charge in
the Licence Holders absence, I explained the reason for my visit, namely that the premises
was thought to be operating in breach of condition 11 of the premises licence by serving
alcohol to those not taking a meal at the premises. In addition, I confirmed that the Licensing
Authority had received noise complaints from neighbours who had also alleged that the
premises was trading outside of the hours permitted by the premises licence.
A sign stating that alcohol could only be sold when accompanied by a food order was clearly
on display behind the bar. I asked Mr Jeganathan whether he was familiar with the conditions
attached to the premises licence and he did not respond. I then directed Mr Jeganathan to the
notice behind the bar and showed him a copy of the condition present on the premises
licence. I asked Mr Jeganathan what the group sitting at the window of the premises had
ordered to eat and he replied that they had ordered some vegetable samosas. I requested a
copy of the food order. At this point Mr Jeganathan left his position at the bar and went into
the kitchen, returning approximately 5 minutes later.
Upon his return, I again requested a copy of the food order made by the group consuming
alcohol at the front of the premises. After appearing to access the till, Mr Jeganathan stated
that he did not put the food order through the till system. At this time a female member of
staff exited the kitchen and took two plates of what appeared to be samosas to the group
sitting in the window at the front of the premises. I explained to Mr Jeganathan that I was
concerned that the licence was being breached as it did not appear that the group had ordered
the food taken out to them."
Best wishes
Beckie
Rebecca Whelton - MIoL
Environmental Protection Officer (Licensing)
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5079
Email: rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

APPENDIX 9

A37

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE
LICENCE NUMBER

PL0183

Part 1 – Premises Details
POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

LAXMI
90 TOLWORTH BROADWAY
TOLWORTH
KT6 7HT

TEL: 020 8399 9165

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

The sale by retail of alcohol
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

The sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Saturday 10:00 hours to midnight
Sunday 12:00 hours to 23:30 hours
SEASONAL VARIATIONS / NON-STANDARD TIMINGS

Christmas Day and Good Friday: 12:00 hours to 23:30 hours
New Year’s Eve: from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following day, until midnight on 31
December).
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF SUPPLIES:

The sale of alcohol is authorised for consumption ON the premises ONLY
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Monday to Saturday 10:00 hours to 00:30 hours the following day
Sunday 12:00 hours to midnight
Part 2
NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER & EMAIL OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
90 Tolworth Broadway
Tolworth
KT6 7HT

Licensing Team, 3rd Floor Guildhall 2, High Street, Kingston Upon Thames KT1 1EU
Printed on: 02/11/2020 11:54

Page 1 of 6

A38
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER: COMPANY NUMBER OR CHARITY NUMBER

Company number: 10589552
NAME, ADDRESS & TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE
AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

MR THAMOTHARAMPILLAI SATHIYAMOORTHY

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER & ISSUING AUTHORITY OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR

No:
Issuing Authority:
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Marcella Basso
Environmental Protection Officer
Date First Granted: 4 August 2005
Issue Date: 20 January 2020

Printed on: 02/11/2020 11:54

Page 2 of 6

A39
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS

Where licence authorises supply of alcohol [Licensing Act 2003 s.19]
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence,
or
b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.
2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.
Drinks promotion [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
3. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotion in relation to the premises where the promotion is
carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol on the premises.
The definition of an irresponsible promotion can be found in The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014 (SI 2014/2440)
Free drinking water [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available
Proof of age [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
5. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
a) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
b) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either
i) a holographic mark, or
ii) An ultraviolet feature.
Measures of alcohol [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
6. The responsible person must ensure thata) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measuresi) Beer or cider ½ pint;
ii) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and
iii) Still wine in a glass 125ml; and
b) These measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available
to customers on the premises; and
c) Where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.
Cost of alcohol - permitted price [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
7. The relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less that the permitted price.
The definition of the permitted price can be found in The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing
Conditions) Order 2014 (SI 2014/1252)

Printed on: 02/11/2020 11:54

Page 3 of 6

A40
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

Embedded restrictions
8. The licence is granted for premises structurally adapted and bona fide used, or intended to be
used, for the purpose of habitually providing the customary main meal at midday or in the
evening, or both, for the accommodation of persons frequenting the premises; and is subject to
the condition that alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to those
persons taking table meals there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to his meal.
9. The above condition shall not extend the supply of alcohol on the premises whether inside or
outside the permitted hours in any case where no person shall except permitted hours;
a) Himself or by his servant or agent sell or supply to any person in licensed premises or in
premises in respect of which a club is registered any alcohol whether to be consumed on or
off the premises or
b) Consume or take from such premises any alcohol
10. Suitable beverages other than alcohol (including drinking water) shall be equally available for
consumption with or otherwise as ancillary to meals served in the licensed premises
11. Alcohol may be sold or supplied:
a) On the following weekdays, namely Monday to Friday, other than Christmas Day, or Good
Friday, 10:00am to midnight
b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, or Good Friday: 12 noon to 23:30pm
c) On Christmas Day; 12 noon to 23:30pm
d) On New Year’s Eve, from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following
day, until midnight on 31 December)
12. Alcohol may be sold or supplied [for one hour following the hours set out above and] [on
Christmas day, between 15:00pm and 19:00pm] to persons taking table meals in a part of the
premises usually set apart for service of such persons and for consumption by such a person in
that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal. For other purposes or in other parts of the
premises the hours set out above shall continue to apply
13. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied unless it is paid for before or at the time when it is sold or
supplied, except alcohol sold or supplied with and for consumption at a meal supplied at the
same time, is consumed with the meal and paid for together with the meal.

ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

None

Printed on: 02/11/2020 11:54

Page 4 of 6

A41
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

ANNEX 4 – PLANS

This is a scanned image of the plan and is not shown to scale

Printed on: 02/11/2020 11:54

Page 5 of 6

A42

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY
LICENCE NUMBER

Licensing Team
3rd Floor Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston Upon Thames
KT1 1EU

PL0183

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

LAXMI
90 TOLWORTH BROADWAY
TOLWORTH
KT6 7HT
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

The sale by retail of alcohol
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

The sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Saturday 10:00 hours to midnight
Sunday 12:00 hours to 23:30 hours
SEASONAL VARIATIONS / NON-STANDARD TIMINGS

Christmas Day and Good Friday: 12:00 hours to 23:30 hours
New Year’s Eve: from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following day, until midnight on 31
December).
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF SUPPLIES:

The sale of alcohol is authorised for consumption ON the premises ONLY
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Monday to Saturday 10:00 hours to 00:30 hours the following day
Sunday 12:00 hours to midnight
NAME AND (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
90 Tolworth Broadway, Tolworth, KT6 7HT
REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER: COMPANY NUMBER OR CHARITY NUMBER

Company number: 10589552
NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

MR THAMOTHARAMPILLAI SATHIYAMOORTHY
STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

None
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Marcella Basso
Environmental Protection Officer
Date First Granted: 4 August 2005
Issue Date: 20 January 2020
Licensing Team, 3rd Floor Guildhall 2, High Street, Kingston Upon Thames KT1 1EU
Printed on: 02/11/2020 11:54

Page 6 of 6

APPENDIX 10

A43

Licensing office

Licensing Officers
Royal Borough of Kingston
Guildhall 2
Kingston upon Thames
Surrey KT1 1EU

5-7 High Street,
Kingston,
Surrey.
KT1 LB
Telephone: 07342 081741
Facsimile:
E-mail: vklicensingoffice@met.police.uk
www.met.police.uk

28th April 2020
Laxmi, 90 Tolworth Broadway, Tolworth, KT6 7HT

Dear Sir or Madam,
I write with regard to the above application, which is to vary a premises licence in accordance
the Licensing Act 2003.The applicant currently holds an existing licence PL0183.
The above application seeks to:1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Remove conditions from the licence.
Amend the hours for the sale of alcohol
Include the provision for recorded music
Include the provision for late night refreshment
Amend the opening hours of the premises.

The Metropolitan Police Service makes objections to the application because it would
undermine both the Crime Prevention and Public Nuisance licensing objectives.
The Metropolitan police would like to bring to the licensing sub-committee two main
concerns that will be addressed within this document.
1. The current Premises Licence holder is not upholding the licensing objectives.
2. The premises is not suitable as a bar, due to its location within residential
properties.
The premises is a restaurant situated on Tolworth Broadway. The immediate area has a
mixture of other similar businesses comprising of restaurants, shops and takeaways that are
located on the ground floor. Above these are numerous residential properties. The venue itself
is located on a busy arterial road into Kingston, which becomes much quieter during the late
evening/night time. The road is heavily serviced by busses during the day/evening however
there is an extremely limited service beyond midnight.
There are currently no other bars/vertical drinking establishments that are open and in close
proximity of the applicant.

A44

Having reviewed the application in detail, the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) is asking for:1. Remove conditions from the licence. The removal of the embedded restriction of
the sale and consumption of alcohol only with a table meal, indicating that the venue
has local customers that come in for drinks only.
2. Amend the hours for the sale of alcohol. The venue currently benefits the sale of
alcohol with a table meal between 10.00 hours to 00.00 hours Monday to Saturday and
12.00 hours to 23.30 hours on a Sunday. The applicant wishes to alter the Sunday
hours to 10.00 hours to 00.00 hours to mirror the rest of the week.
3. Include the provision for recorded music. Between 23.00 hours to 00.00 hours
everyday
4. Include the provision for late night refreshment. Between 23.00 hours to 00.00
hours everyday
5. Amend the opening hours of the premises. The venue currently has opening hours
between 10.00 hours to 00.30 hours the following Monday to Saturday and 12.00 hours
to 00.00 hours on a Sunday. The applicant wishes to alter the hours to 06.00 hours to
00.30 hours the following day every day. This will enable the applicant to cater for
breakfast.
The PLH submitted a similar application to vary the premises licence on the 03rd September
2019 albeit the applicant was requesting the sale of alcohol up to 03.00 hours the following
day over the weekend and extended hours during the week. The Metropolitan Police submitted
representations on the 30th September requesting that the licensing sub-committee refuse the
application because crime, disorder, and public nuisance would increase. (Annex 1 – Police
representations).
This application went to a hearing on the 22nd October 2019, and on the day of the hearing Mr
Suresh (applicants licensing agent) amended the application reducing the licensable hours.
Despite the amendment of hours, the Metropolitan Police still requested that the application
be refused on the same grounds, and on the date of the hearing, the Sub-Committee
refused the application, which can be seen on Annex 2.
Addressing the current application, the premises licence holder still effectively wishes to alter
the primary use of the premises changing the venue from a restaurant (with the options still
to provide food) to a bar. The metropolitan police still hold the opinion that varying this
condition and making all other changes to the licence, crime, disorder, and public nuisance
would increase, both at the premises and to the vicinity, which would affect the local
residents.

Temporary Events Notices
At the end of the hearing on the 22nd October 2019, it was discussed with the PLH and his
licensing agent that a series of Temporary Events Notices (TENS) could be submitted where
consideration would be given to establishing whether the premises would be suitable to
remove the restaurant condition and allow vertical drinking. It is the view of the Metropolitan
Police that the venue may never be suitable as a venue for vertical drinking as the premises
appears never to be designed as a bar or pub.
A series of TENS were submitted by the applicant, and ran between the 8th November 2019
to the 17th January 2020 primarily covering singular weekend days. These however only
covered the winter months. Although there were no recorded incidents as would be
expected, it is felt that these were not a true reflection as they covered a period of time

A45

where it would be anticipated that there would be fewer incidents of anti-social behaviour,
noise and disorder due to the cold weather. Therefore, customers would not be spending
lengthy periods smoking outside or loitering which can happen during the Summer months.
A better understanding would be if the applicant covered this period of time to ascertain if
noise, drunkenness and loitering by customers would have a caused problems for the local
residents.
Crime and Disorder
As previously stated in earlier representations, the serious crime that was referred to
established that the PLH breached the conditions on his licence and raised questions to
whether he was responsible in operating his venue in line with his license.
On the 11th November 2019 the local authority received and shared information by email to
the police from a local resident that an incident had occurred outside the restaurant. The
content stated, “There had been a fight outside Laxmi with chairs from the restaurant thrown
into the road. There was at least 10 people and it was very loud and disruptive. They ran into
Travelodge when they heard a siren. I am very surprised the police haven’t been called.
Some of them were carrying bottles of drink and some were inhaling balloons”
A request was made on the same day to the local dedicated police ward officer (DWO) to
seize the CCTV from Laxmi, which was completed within 7 days. Upon viewing the CCTV it
was established that the recording given was 15 minutes after the incident occurred. The
PLH was given the correct date and timings from the DWO prior to collection.
A meeting was subsequently arranged at LAXMI for the police licensing team to view the
CCTV with the PLH. The meeting took place on the 27th November. Also present was the
PLH’s licensing agent Mr Suresh.
It was established at the meeting that the PLH had not downloaded the CCTV and it was
agreed that after the meeting 30 minutes would be sufficient to obtain a copy. The meeting
moved away from the incident and moved towards how the venue could remove the
restaurant condition. It was suggested again that the PLH should complete a series of TENS
for the next 6 months to reflect summer trade. Mr Suresh agreed that the TENS should run
for longer.
The meeting concluded and licensing officer gave the PLH the time to download the CCTV,
however were informed that this was no longer possible as the CCTV was un-available as it
can only be stored for 2 weeks on the hard drive.
The metropolitan police licensing team have an expectation that if an incident occurs at any
licenced venue which has been highlighted to the PLH/DPS which is covered by CCTV, a
copy would be made available in line with the licensing objectives. The table and chairs
outside Laxmi are covered by camera. This leads to a concern that the PLH did not want
police to view the incident, as there were many opportunities to secure a copy of this
incident.
Breach of License
Further to this, an email was received to the police licensing team from the Environmental
Protection Officer (Licensing). The email received explained that the team had conducted a
licensed visit on the 9th of January 2020 where they established that the venue had
breached its restaurant condition by selling alcohol to a group of males without the sale of
food. Annex 3 shows the detailed email.

A46

The Metropolitan Police raised concerns at the previous hearing, stating, “It appears that the
venue has previously been in breach of its licence, which raises concerns for the
metropolitan police as to whether the current licence holder is responsible in upholding
his licence and licensable objectives.” Referring to sub-committees decision notice in
October 2019 part of the decision stated “It was considered that the venue had previously
been in breach of its Premises Licence, which raised concerns as to whether the
current Premises Licence holder was responsible and operating in line with his licence
and upholding and promoting the licensing objectives.”
Both incidents occurred within 12 weeks of the sub-committees decision, and as such the
metropolitan police maintain their stance that the current PLH is not responsible in promoting
the licensing objectives. The change of business use to a bar is likely to increase the amount
of alcohol customers consume which could potentially have a severe impact on the local
community if the licensable objectives are ignored.
Concerns of the suitability of the venue becoming a bar – Increasing anti-social
behaviour and affecting the local community.
1. There is no lobby that will act as a natural barrier when the front door is open
creating unwanted noise from recorded music, and elevated noise from customers
caused by continual movement in and out of the venue smoking, eating and drinking.
2. There currently is no other venue in close proximity that is currently open as a bar,
which potentially could make Laxmi very busy, greatly increasing noise levels, and
increasing the likelihood of crime and disorder.
3. The agreed suggested use of TENS that would see the venue operate during the
Summer has been ignored which raises concerns that the operator would be aware
that noise complaints would increase, potentially preventing this licence to be granted
after the summer period.
4. Representations from local residents on the previous application. One of which was
from the landlord of Laxmi who agreed with the PLH to run the venue as a restaurant
and not a late night bar. He has also expressed concerns to the flats above the
venue which he owns and leases out – Annex 4
5. Viewing the premises licence application: 7. Where the premises licence is in operation the designated smoking area (front
of the premises) shall be limited to no more than 7 people at one time. There is
nothing in place to suggest how this will be monitored/policed, making this an
unachievable condition.
 12. No noise or vibration shall be detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive
premises. The level of music shall be arranged so as not to cause a nuisance to
local residents. Nothing in place to suggest how this is an achievable condition.

Referring to the Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames Statement of Licensing Policy
2016-2021, section 115 states “ The potential for nuisance associated with the style,
characteristics and activities of the business to be carried on at the premises and the
potential steps which could be taken to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring are
therefore the key criteria relevant to this objective. This will particularly apply where
there is residential accommodation in the proximity of the premises.” The metropolitan
police would respectfully like to remind the sub-committee of this prior to making their
decision.
As stated from the previous representations, the metropolitan police will conclude by
referring the sub-committee to the revised guidance issued under section 182 of the
licensing act 2003, “Effects of cumulative impact assessments” section 14.42 states “The

A47

absence of a CIA does not prevent any responsible authority or other person making
representations on an application for the grant or variation of a licence on the
grounds that the premises will give rise to a negative cumulative impact on one or
more of the licensing objectives, However, in each case it would be incumbent on the
person making the representation to provide relevant evidence of cumulative impact.”
Therefore, the metropolitan police as responsible authority believe that should this
application be granted the primary use of the premises would change from being a
restaurant to a premise where alcohol could be consumed without the requirement to
purchase food. This change of use by variation of the premises licence especially with the
current PLH will ultimately lead to an increase of crime/disorder and public nuisance.
It is the view of the metropolitan police that should this application be granted the licensing
objectives would be undermined and I would respectfully ask that this application is
refused.

Yours sincerely,

Pc Hopkins 3108SW
Licensing Officer

A48

APPENDIX 11

DECISION NOTICE
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
Licensing Act 2003 - Notice of Determination
Date of issue: Monday 1 June 2020
Decision taken by the Licensing Sub-Committee on Tuesday 26 May 2020
Application by: Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
Application for a Variation of a Premises Licence for the premises known as ‘Laxmi’, at 90
Tolworth Broadway, Surbiton, KT6 7HT
Present
Licensing Sub-Committee:
Councillor John Sweeney (chair)
Councillor Hilary Gander
Councillor Dave Ryder-Mills
Applicant:
Suresh Kanapathi - Applicant’s representative
Thamotharampillai Sathiyamoorthy – Premises Manager and Designated Premises
Supervisor
Those making relevant representations:
Richard Odell – Environmental Protection Officer (Pollution Control), RB Kingston
Louise Gallagher – Public Health, RB Kingston
PC Lee Hopkins – Metropolitan Police
Genevieve Woods – Legal, Metropolitan Police
Officers:
Guy Beaumont - Legal Advisor
Rebecca Whelton - Licensing Officer
Martin Newton - Democratic Services Officer
The Hearing
The Licensing Officer introduced the matter for determination.

1

A49

The Variation of the Premises Licence application sought the following:








Extending the hours during which alcohol can be sold (for consumption on
the premises only) on Sundays, from 10:00 to Midnight, to match the existing hours
permitted Monday to Saturday.
The removal of seasonal restrictions/variations in relation to Christmas Day, Good
Friday and New Year’s Eve.
The addition of provision of regulated entertainment (recorded music), from 23:00 to
Midnight daily.
The addition of provision of late night refreshment from 23:00 to Midnight daily.
The amendment of opening hours, from 06:00 to 00:30 daily.
The replacement of previous conditions with a new operating schedule of conditions.

The Licensing Officer explained that the applicant had advertised the application, as
required, by way of a poster at the premises and by advertisement in a local newspaper
and that the application had also been advertised on the Council’s website. In addition
some 461 addresses were consulted in writing and informed that an application had been
received. One valid representation had been received from Other Persons. The
representation made reference to matters that relate to the prevention of crime and disorder
and prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives.
It was confirmed that all Responsible Authorities received a copy of the application. The
Metropolitan Police as the Responsible Authority for the prevention of crime and disorder,
Environmental Protection Officer (Pollution Control) as Responsible Authority for the
prevention of public nuisance, Trading Standards Officer as Responsible Authority for the
protection of children from harm and Director of Public Health raised concerns regarding
the application. Following further consultation the applicant had addressed the concerns of
the Trading Standards Officer by making amendments to their operating schedule. These
amendments were reflected in the conditions shown in Annex 4 of the report to the SubCommittee. In light of these amendments the representations made by the Trading
Standards Officer had been satisfied. These amendments did not affect the representations
made by the Metropolitan Police, Director of Public Health or the Environmental Protection
Officer (Pollution Control). In the local area, the Broadway Bar was the only existing
licensed bar in the nearby area and was located opposite the premises. Notwithstanding
the recent Coronavirus restrictions, the Broadway Bar was currently closed.
The Licensing Sub-Committee then heard the submission on behalf of the applicant, from
Mr Kanapathi and Mr Sathiyamoorthy. In summary, Members noted Mr Kanapathi’s
statement that the premises provides an established predominantly Sri Lankan and Indian
food business. The applicant stated that some concerns raised by the Responsible
Authorities, particularly relating to a fight outside the premises in November 2019, were not
related to Laxmi. He went on to state that, in his view, the area was a town centre location
and not as quiet therefore as a purely residential area. Mr Kanapathi also drew attention to
the fact that only 1 representation had been received from Other Persons and that other
nearby businesses had indicated support for Laxmi. He confirmed that the new manager of
the premises, who had extensive experience of managing a similar premises in North
Cheam, would work to address any noise or other concerns.

2

A50

Mr Kanapathi confirmed that the intention was to provide those local patrons, which may for
example visit the premises with a laptop for working purposes, with an alcoholic drink option
for purchase that did not need to be accompanied by a meal. He made the point that a
number of establishments do not have the restriction that Laxmi have in terms of alcohol
only being available when bought with a meal. Mr Kanapathi confirmed that recorded music
would be played in the background, and that the premises did not have a dance floor, and
that it was proposed to continue to serve food up until midnight. He also answered
concerns raised by the Responsible Authorities relating to availability of CCTV to view past
incidents (which was not previously required by condition) and confirmed that recordings
would be kept for 31 days, rather than for 14 days as previously. Mr Kanapathi then
addressed questions relating to the Temporary Event Notice events (TENS) that had taken
place at the premises and commented on concerns that these were not during a summer
period when any potential issues may have been more likely. At the conclusion of questions
to the applicant, Mr Sathiyamoorthy then confirmed details of noise management, use of
the designated smoking area, staff training and the dispersal policy.
The Licensing Sub-Committee then heard from Mr Odell, Environmental Protection Officer
(Pollution Control), RB Kingston, who told the hearing that the application before them was
similar to that submitted for consideration in September 2019 and which had been revised
at the Sub-Committee’s meeting. For that application, in addition to the removal of the
restaurant condition there was an extension of operating hours to 2am. The Sub-Committee
had refused the variation on the grounds of failure to uphold the public nuisance and crime
and disorder licensing objectives. In summary, Mr Odell said that since that hearing, 11
TENS had taken place (10 during 2019 and 1 during 2020) but unfortunately complaints
had continued to be received, including one regarding a fight outside the premises on 9
November 2019. Despite claims from the premises that after-hours “parties” at the premises
were purely for staff, it was understood that further complaints continued to be investigated
by the Licensing Team.
Mr Odell said that the removal of the restaurant condition would the premises to operate
exclusively as a bar and that he could have no confidence that the licensee could
successfully operate on that basis and uphold the Council’s licensing objectives for the
prevention of public nuisance and prevention of crime and disorder. He therefore
recommend that the application be refused. The Licensing Sub-Committee also noted Mr
Odell’s comment that the atmosphere within a bar is different to a restaurant. Noise levels
could be expected to be greater, as would be the consumption of alcohol. The licensee had
a history of playing loud music at volumes to cause complaints and being unable to manage
noise from staff and/or customers outside, both as smokers or during dispersal. Mr Odell
also suggested the inclusion of some additional conditions to assist with noise mitigation.
The Licensing Sub-Committee then heard from Ms Gallagher, Public Health, RB Kingston
who in summary confirmed opposition to the application, drawing on latest available data
from the area to consider the detrimental impact on the licensing objectives.
Ms Woods and PC Hopkins spoke on behalf of the Metropolitan Police. In summary, the
Sub-Committee noted that the concerns of the Police were that the current premises
licence holder is not upholding the licensing objectives; and that the premises is not suitable
as a bar, due to its location within residential properties. Although there were no recorded
3

A51

Police incidents regarding the TENS these covered a winter period when it would be
anticipated there would be fewer incidents of anti-social behaviour, noise and disorder as
customers would not be spending lengthy periods smoking outside or loitering.
The Police confirmed being made aware of the November 2019 fight incident that had
occurred outside the restaurant. It was established that the premises CCTV of the incident
was unavailable and the concern was that the premises did not want Police to view the
incident. The Police was also aware that the Council’s Licensing team had visited the
premises on 9 January 2020 where they established that the venue had breached its
restaurant condition by selling alcohol to a group of males without the sale of food.
The Police raised further concern that there is no lobby at the premises that would act as a
natural barrier when the front door is open creating unwanted noise from recorded music,
and elevated noise from customers caused by continual movement in and out of the venue
smoking, eating and drinking. As no other venue in close proximity is currently open as a
bar, there could be potential for Laxmi to become very busy, greatly increasing noise levels,
and increasing the likelihood of crime and disorder.
Before considering their decision, the Licensing Sub-Committee also heard the applicant’s
summing up where Mr Kanapathi reiterated his previous comments regarding the operation
of the business and the measures that would be put in place to ensure that the premises
met the requirements of the proposed variation to the current premises licence.
Reasoning and decision
In making their decision, the Licensing Sub-Committee considered the merits of the
application and had regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and guidance
issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.
The Licensing Sub-Committee noted the responses of the Responsible Authorities,
including the concerns raised by the Environmental Protection Officer (Pollution Control)
and the Director of Public Health, RB Kingston, and also the Metropolitan Police. It was also
noted that the applicant had addressed the concerns previously identified by the Trading
Standards Officer. The Licensing Sub-Committee also gave due consideration to the one
written representation from Other Persons.
The Licensing Sub Committee were mindful of past incidents where breaches of the current
premises licence occurred with alcohol served to non-diners, and considered that were they
to allow the application in its entirety and remove condition 8 of the current premises
licence, which restricts the sale and consumption of alcohol only with a table meal, then the
nature of the premises would change as a result of this and the Licensing Sub-Committee
were not satisfied in view of the previous incidents and the increased risk of future incidents
that this change would be managed effectively and not undermine promotion of the
licensing objectives. For that reason, the Licensing Sub-Committee considered that
condition 8 of the current premises licence, which restricts the sale and consumption of
alcohol only with a table meal, should remain in place as part of any variation to the
premises licence. The Licensing Sub-Committee were also of the opinion that appropriate
additional conditions as suggested by the Environmental Protection Officer (Pollution

4

A52

Control), RB Kingston to assist with noise mitigation should be attached to any varied
premises licence.
After considering the steps which were appropriate and proportionate to promote the
licensing objectives, and after taking account of all relevant issues that had been raised in
the application and by the written and verbal representations, the Licensing Sub-Committee
decided to partially grant the application for a variation of the premises licence in relation to
the premises known as Laxmi, 90 Tolworth Broadway, Surbiton, KT6 7HT, subject to the
retention in the varied premises licence of the current condition 8 of the premises licence,
that restricts the sale and consumption of alcohol only with a table meal, the applicant’s
operating schedule (with amendment to condition 13 of that schedule referred to below) set
out in annex 4 of the report, and the addition of further conditions 17-22 relating to noise
mitigation. The Licensing Sub-Committee noted that the Review procedures allowed
residents the opportunity to raise any future issues should they arise.
Decision
The Sub-Committee decided to partially grant the Variation to the Premises Licence,
subject to conditions, as follows
The variation to the premises licence permits the following: Extending

the hours during which alcohol can be sold (for consumption on
the premises only) on Sundays, from 10:00 to Midnight, to match the existing hours
permitted Monday to Saturday.
 The removal of seasonal restrictions/variations in relation to Christmas Day, Good
Friday and New Year’s Eve.
 The addition of provision of regulated entertainment (recorded music), from 23:00 to
Midnight daily.
 The addition of provision of late night refreshment from 23:00 to Midnight daily.
 The amendment of opening hours, from 06:00 to 00:30 daily.
 The replacement of previous conditions 1-7 and 9-13 with a new operating schedule
of conditions 1-15 in annex 4 of the report as set out in full below, subject to an
amendment to condition 13 in annex 4 in the following terms “Between opening
hours and 9pm, 7 persons are permitted to be in the designated smoking area, and
from 9pm and the end of the specified opening hours on any day the number of
customers permitted to smoke external to the premises shall be limited to no more
than 3 at any one time.”
 The retention of the previous condition 8 of the premises licence (to now be
renumbered condition 16) as set out in full below restricting the sale and
consumption of alcohol only with a table meal.
 The addition of the conditions 17-22 as set out in full below relating to noise
mitigation
Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule, with amendments and additions as
referred to above:-

5

A53

The prevention of crime & disorder
Closed circuit television system (CCTV)
1. A CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in a good working order at the
premises.
2. CCTV recordings shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to the police
or an authorised officer of the Council upon request.
3. The CCTV system shall provide coverage of the customer entrance to the premises.
4. The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition standard
images of every person entering the premises.
5. The CCTV images shall be kept in an easily downloadable format.
Incident log
6. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available for inspection on
request to an authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which will record the
following: (a) all crimes reported to the venue 3 (b) all ejections of patrons (c) any
complaints received (d) any incidents of disorder (e) all seizures of drugs or offensive
weapons (f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning
equipment (h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
The protection of children from harm
Staff training
7. All staff involved in the sale or delivery of alcohol shall be trained for their role on
induction and given refresher training at regular intervals of no more than 12 months.
Training shall cover the operation of Challenge 25, identifying persons under 25,
making a challenge, acceptable proof of age and checking it, making & recording a
refusal, proxy sales & avoiding conflict.
8. A written training record shall be kept for each staff member, shall be signed by the
trainer and trainee in respect of training received and produced to Police or
Authorised Officers of the Council on request.
9. A written refusal record shall be kept. This will include a brief description of the
person attempting the purchase of alcohol, the goods they attempted to purchase,
the date / time of the attempted purchase, the reason for refusal & signature of the
person refusing shall be recorded. The Designated Premises Supervisor shall check
the refusal record monthly and sign /date the check. The record shall be produced to
Police or Authorised Officers of the Council on request.
Age verification policy – Challenge 25
10. Signage indicating the premises operates a Challenge 25 policy shall be displayed at
the point of sale.
11. A sign stating ‘No proof of age, No sale’ shall be displayed at the point of sale.
The prevention of public nuisance
External smoking area
6

A54

12. The designated smoking area (DSA) shall be located at the front of the premises on
The Broadway, Tolworth.
13. Between opening hours and 9pm, 7 persons are permitted to be in the designated
smoking area, and from 9pm and the end of the specified opening hours on any day
the number of customers permitted to smoke external to the premises shall be
limited to no more than 3 at any one time.
Dispersal
14. The premises licence holder/designated premises supervisor shall ensure that
customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner. Notices asking
customers to leave quietly shall be conspicuously displayed at all exits.
Noise management
15. No noise or vibration shall be detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive
premises. The level of music shall be arranged so as not to cause a nuisance to
local residents.
Restaurant condition
16. The licence is granted for premises structurally adapted and bona fide used, or
intended to be used, for the purpose of habitually providing the customary main meal
at midday or in the evening, or both, for the accommodation of persons frequenting
the premises; and is subject to the condition that alcohol shall not be sold or supplied
on the premises otherwise than to those persons taking table meals there and for
consumption by such a person as ancillary to his meal.
Noise Management
17. An assessment shall be made of the potential sources of public nuisance arising
from the premises and a Noise Management Plan shall be formulated to control or
eliminate any sources of noise disturbance to adjacent residential occupiers. The
Plan shall be available at the premises for inspection by enforcement officers of the
Council or Police within one month or at any time thereafter of this licence being
granted. The Plan shall be reviewed yearly.
18. Except for access and egress, all external doors and windows must be kept closed
between 9pm and the end of the specified opening hours on any day.
19. Except for access and egress, all external doors and windows must be kept closed
when live music or recorded music is in progress.
20. The licence holder shall ensure that all employees are made aware of the conditions
attached to this licence through induction and refresher training procedures.
21. A Noise Management Plan shall be formulated to include specific steps to effectively
manage noise arising from customers smoking outside the premises. The Plan shall
be available at the premises for inspection by enforcement officers of the Council or
Police by within one month or at any time thereafter of this licence being granted.
The Plan shall be reviewed yearly.
22. All staff / security shall endeavour to move customers on and discourage them from
congregating within the external area and the immediate vicinity of the premises.
7

APPENDIX 12

A55

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE
LICENCE NUMBER

PL0183

Part 1 – Premises Details
POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

LAXMI
90 TOLWORTH BROADWAY
TOLWORTH
KT6 7HT

TEL: 020 8399 9165

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE





The provision of regulated entertainment (recorded music - indoors)
The provision of late night refreshment
The sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

The sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Sunday 10:00 hours to Midnight
The provision of regulated entertainment (recorded music - indoors)
Monday to Sunday 23:00 hours to Midnight
The provision of late night refreshment (indoors)
Monday to Sunday 23:00 hours to Midnight
SEASONAL VARIATIONS / NON-STANDARD TIMINGS

None
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF SUPPLIES:

The sale of alcohol is authorised for consumption ON the premises ONLY
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Monday to Sunday 06:00 hours to 00:30 hours the following day
Part 2
NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER & EMAIL OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
90 Tolworth Broadway
Tolworth
KT6 7HT

Licensing Team, 3rd Floor Guildhall 2, High Street, Kingston Upon Thames KT1 1EU
Printed on: 05/06/2020 09:00

Page 1 of 7

A56
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER: COMPANY NUMBER OR CHARITY NUMBER

Company number: 10589552
NAME, ADDRESS & TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE
AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

MR THAMOTHARAMPILLAI SATHIYAMOORTHY

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER & ISSUING AUTHORITY OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR

No:
Issuing Authority:
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Rebecca Whelt n
Environmental Protection Officer
Date First Granted: 4 August 2005
Issue Date: 3 June 2020

Printed on: 05/06/2020 09:00

Page 2 of 7

A57
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS

Where licence authorises supply of alcohol [Licensing Act 2003 s.19]
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence,
or
b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.
2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.
Drinks promotion [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
3. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotion in relation to the premises where the promotion is
carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol on the premises.
The definition of an irresponsible promotion can be found in The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014 (SI 2014/2440)
Free drinking water [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available
Proof of age [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
5. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
a) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
b) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either
i) a holographic mark, or
ii) An ultraviolet feature.
Measures of alcohol [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
6. The responsible person must ensure thata) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measuresi) Beer or cider ½ pint;
ii) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and
iii) Still wine in a glass 125ml; and
b) These measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available
to customers on the premises; and
c) Where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.
Cost of alcohol - permitted price [Licensing Act 2003 s.19A]
7. The relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less that the permitted price.
The definition of the permitted price can be found in The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing
Conditions) Order 2014 (SI 2014/1252)

Printed on: 05/06/2020 09:00

Page 3 of 7

A58
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

The prevention of crime & disorder
Closed circuit television system (CCTV)
8. A CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in a good working order at the premises.
9. CCTV recordings shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to the police or
authorised officer of the Council upon request.
10. The CCTV system shall provide coverage of the customer entrance to the premises.
11. The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition standard images of
every person entering the premises.
12. The CCTV images shall be kept in an easily downloadable format.
Incident log
13. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available for inspection on request to
an authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which will record the following: (a) all crimes
reported to the venue 3 (b) all ejections of patrons (c) any complaints received (d) any incidents
of disorder (e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons (f) any faults in the CCTV system or
searching equipment or scanning equipment (h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency
service.
The protection of children from harm
Staff training
14. All staff involved in the sale or delivery of alcohol shall be trained for their role on induction and
given refresher training at regular intervals of no more than 12 months. Training shall cover the
operation of Challenge 25, identifying persons under 25, making a challenge, acceptable proof
of age and checking it, making & recording a refusal, proxy sales & avoiding conflict.
15. A written training record shall be kept for each staff member, shall be signed by the trainer and
trainee in respect of training received and produced to Police or Authorised Officers of the
Council on request.
16. A written refusal record shall be kept. This will include a brief description of the person
attempting the purchase of alcohol, the goods they attempted to purchase, the date / time of the
attempted purchase, the reason for refusal & signature of the person refusing shall be recorded.
The Designated Premises Supervisor shall check the refusal record monthly and sign /date the
check. The record shall be produced to Police or Authorised Officers of the Council on request.
Age verification policy – Challenge 25
17. Signage indicating the premises operates a Challenge 25 policy shall be displayed at the point
of sale.
18. A sign stating ‘No proof of age, No sale’ shall be displayed at the point of sale.
The prevention of public nuisance
External smoking area
19. The designated smoking area (DSA) shall be located at the front of the premises on The
Broadway, Tolworth.
Dispersal
20. The premises licence holder/designated premises supervisor shall ensure that customers leave
the premises in a quiet and orderly manner. Notices asking customers to leave quietly shall be
conspicuously displayed at all exits.
Noise management
21. No noise or vibration shall be detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive premises. The
level of music shall be arranged so as not to cause a nuisance to local residents.

Printed on: 05/06/2020 09:00

Page 4 of 7

A59
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

The prevention of crime & disorder
Restaurant condition – alcohol with a meal
22. The licence is granted for premises structurally adapted and bona fide used, or intended to be
used, for the purpose of habitually providing the customary main meal at midday or in the
evening, or both, for the accommodation of persons frequenting the premises; and is subject to
the condition that alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to those
persons taking table meals there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to his meal.
The prevention of public nuisance
External smoking area
23. Between opening hours and 21:00 hours, 7 persons are permitted to be in the designated
smoking area, and from 21:00 hours to the end of the specified opening hours on any day the
number of customers permitted to smoke external to the premises shall be limited to no more
than 3 at any one time.
Noise Management
24. An assessment shall be made of the potential sources of public nuisance arising from the
premises and a Noise Management Plan shall be formulated to control or eliminate any sources
of noise disturbance to adjacent residential occupiers. The Plan shall be available at the
premises for inspection by enforcement officers of the Council or Police within one month or at
any time thereafter of this licence being granted. The Plan shall be reviewed yearly.
25. Except for access and egress, all external doors and windows must be kept closed between
21:00 hours and the end of the specified opening hours on any day.
26. Except for access and egress, all external doors and windows must be kept closed when live
music or recorded music is in progress.
27. The licence holder shall ensure that all employees are made aware of the conditions attached
to this licence through induction and refresher training procedures.
28. A Noise Management Plan shall be formulated to include specific steps to effectively manage
noise arising from customers smoking outside the premises. The Plan shall be available at the
premises for inspection by enforcement officers of the Council or Police by within one month or
at any time thereafter of this licence being granted. The Plan shall be reviewed yearly.
29. All staff / security shall endeavour to move customers on and discourage them from
congregating within the external area and the immediate vicinity of the premises.

Printed on: 05/06/2020 09:00

Page 5 of 7

A60
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0183

ANNEX 4 – PLANS

This is a scanned image of the plan and is not shown to scale

Printed on: 05/06/2020 09:00

Page 6 of 7

A61

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY
LICENCE NUMBER

Licensing Team
3rd Floor Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston Upon Thames
KT1 1EU

PL0183

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

LAXMI
90 TOLWORTH BROADWAY
TOLWORTH
KT6 7HT
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE





The provision of regulated entertainment (recorded music - indoors)
The provision of late night refreshment
The sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

The sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Sunday 10:00 hours to Midnight
The provision of regulated entertainment (recorded music - indoors)
Monday to Sunday 23:00 hours to Midnight
The provision of late night refreshment (indoors)
Monday to Sunday 23:00 hours to Midnight
SEASONAL VARIATIONS / NON-STANDARD TIMINGS

None
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF SUPPLIES:

The sale of alcohol is authorised for consumption ON the premises ONLY
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Monday to Sunday 06:00 hours to 00:30 hours the following day
NAME AND (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Laxmi and Sisters Ltd
90 Tolworth Broadway, Tolworth, KT6 7HT
REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER: COMPANY NUMBER OR CHARITY NUMBER

Company number: 10589552
NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

MR THAMOTHARAMPILLAI SATHIYAMOORTHY
STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

None
D

BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Rebecca Whelton
Environmental Protection Officer
Date First Granted: 4 August 2005
Issue Date: 3 June 2020

Licensing Team, 3rd Floor Guildhall 2, High Street, Kingston Upon Thames KT1 1EU
Printed on: 05/06/2020 09:00

Page 7 of 7

A62

APPENDIX 13

Meeting at Laxmi – Tolworth Broadyway on the 30st September 2020 at 13.30 hours

Reason - The local authority (Marcella Basso) has raised concerns to the police that the venue is in
breach of its license. Marcella highlighted that she had received complaints that there were several
people outside the venue on a given date after 21.00 hours smoking where there license stipulated a
maximum of 3 people at any one time.
Marcella requested a copy of the CCTV of all the incidents given to her, and this was provided by the
venue, where she established that they were in breach of their license as well as in breach of COVID19 regulations. Not only were there several people outside smoking, the venue was unaware of what
their noise management policy was and there was also people dancing inside the venue and no
social distancing.

Present at the meeting was:PC Hopkins
Marcella Basso
DPS – Mr Thamothampillai Sathiyamoorthy – known as Suresh
Paul Mathimaran (Owner)
Vishwanath Kavali – translator/friend

Immediately established that the venue was still operating on their old license and their new license
that was issued on the 3rd June 2020 was not on display and therefore the new conditions that were
placed on the license from the sub-committee were not being adhered to. This was immediately
pointed out to all parties by the police, and was highlighted as a real concern again to whether the
venue was responsible as Paul was present at the hearing and should have been fully conversant
with the new license.
This meeting was led by the local authority and was agreed by them that the venue would be issued
with a final warning and if any further breaches come to light then consideration given to reviewing
the license.
As a substantive offence was established by police at the scene, a notification of alleged offences
under the licensing act 2003 was given (section 57 (7) Failure to produce a premises license or a
certified copy)
This notification was completed at the venue and signed by the DPS at the time and fully explained

A63

APPENDIX 14

A64

APPENDIX 15

Kingston and Sutton Shared Environment Service
Regulatory Services
Assistant Director – Matthew Hill
My Ref: Covid-19/WL/TableService
Regulatory Services
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Services
Guildhall 2
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU
www.kingston.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8547 5002
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk

Mr Paul Mathimaran
c/o Laxmi
90 Tolworth Broadway
Tolworth
KT6 7HT

Dear Mr Mathimaran,
** Table Service **
The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (No.2) (England) Regulations 2020
as amended
From 24th September 2020 the above Regulations require that in restricted businesses and
restricted services, food and drinks be ordered by, and served to, customers while seated on
the premises. In other words, customers may not stand in the premises nor order or consume
drinks at the bar.
Your business is deemed to be a restricted premises or restricted service for the purposes of
this legislation.
You are receiving this letter because an officer and a Police Officer have noted that you
appeared not to be meeting the requirements of the legislation during a recent visit or
observation of your premises. You may or may not have been spoken to by an officer at the
time of this visit.
The Council is actively enforcing contraventions of the requirements of the Regulations and
has the power to issue a fixed penalty notice for £1,000 (£500 if paid within 14 days) to
premises that are not complying with the Regulations.
You must immediately take steps to ensure that your premises operates by table
service only, at all times, both inside and outside. You must also take all reasonable
steps to ensure that your customers remain seated whilst consuming food and drinks
on your premises.
If you are observed to be trading other than in compliance with the current Covid-19
restrictions, we may issue a fixed penalty notice on you.

A65

Further visits will be made to your premises in due course to ensure compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. Failure to comply with the requirements may lead to a fixed
penalty notice being served.
Please contact licensing@kingston.gov.uk if you require further advice or information
regarding this matter.

Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service

ANNEX 2

A66

Kingston and Sutton Shared Environment Service
Regulatory Services
Assistant Director - Matthew Hill
Your Ref: EH-LIC/043513

Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU

Mr David Kingstone
Licensing Authority
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU

:
E-Mail:
Website:

020 8547 5080
licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk

7 December 2020
Dear Mr Kingstone,
RE: Review application submitted by the Metropolitan Police in relation to Laxmi, 90
Tolworth Broadway, Tolworth KT6 7HT
My name is Marcella Basso and I am a Licensing Officer at the Royal Borough of Kingston
upon Thames.
I am writing in support of the Review application submitted by the Metropolitan Police in
relation to Laxmi, 90 Tolworth Broadway, Tolworth KT6 7HT. The review application has been
made to address the premises licence holder’s repeated failure to comply with conditions on
his licence. These failings have resulted in a number of complaints and have undermined the
licensing objectives of the prevention of public nuisance and the prevention of crime and
disorder. I write in support of this review based on the evidence described below.
Mr Paul Mathimaran took over the premises in September 2016, when he transferred the
licence and became the Designated Premises Supervisor.
The licence he transferred had conditions attached to it, one of them restricting the sale of
alcohol to customers consuming a meal only. Mr Mathimaran tried on 2 occasions to have the
restaurant condition removed through Full Variation applications, however both of his requests
were refused following a hearing of the Licensing Sub Committee.
On 29/06/2017, less than a year after the licence was transferred, Licensing Officers
witnessed tables and chairs placed by the premises on the highway without a valid permit.
Verbal and written advice was provided on how to obtain a permit.
Five months later, on 30/11/2017, Licensing Officers accompanied by the police visited the
premises and carried out a full licensing inspection. At the time of the visit, a permit to place
tables and chairs on the highway had not yet been applied for, however furniture had
continued to be placed on the pavement outside the premises. The full licensing inspection
highlighted other areas of concern too: a member of staff made it clear that the premises were
operating partially as a bar. This was also confirmed by signage on the front of the premises.
1

A67

Officers explained that the conditions attached to the licence required that alcohol be sold only
to those persons consuming a table meal. Officers provided advice on how to apply to have
the restriction removed through a Full Variation application.
During the same visit, the original or certified copy of the full licence was not available for
inspection and a number of bottles of spirits, predominantly of French origin, were found to be
on display and did not appear to have duty paid labels. A follow up email summarising the
areas of concern was sent to Mr Mathimaran.
A serious incident occurred at Laxmi on 22/03/2019. During the Police investigation, it
emerged that the individuals involved in the incident had been served alcohol without having
purchased any food. As a result, a warning letter was sent to the licence holder on 08/05/2019.
In December 2019, the Council began to receive noise complaints in relation to the premises
and its operation. The complainant stated that she had been woken up after midnight by drunk
customers congregating outside the restaurant. The complainant stated that this was an
ongoing issue which she had tried resolving by approaching the premises directly, however
the problems continued. On this occasion, when Licensing Officers investigated the complaint,
the restaurant’s manager at the time was very apologetic and was offered verbal advice.
This was the first of a series of sporadic noise complaints received from the same resident.
On 07/09/2020 the complainant provided us with a noise diary in which she described the
latest instances of disturbance that she had experienced. A decision was made to request
Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) footage from the premises for the dates highlighted in the
noise diary. The CCTV footage clearly showed that staff were not managing the outside
smoking area and as a result groups of up to 10 people were sometimes seen gathered
outside, with no social distance being observed.
A copy of the noise management plan was requested, however the premises were unable to
provide it.
On 30/09/2020, I visited the premises with PC Lee Hopkins to discuss the findings of my
investigation. Present at the meeting were Mr Paul Mathimaran, the DPS and a friend, Mr
Vishwanath Kavali, who was helping out with translation.
I explained that the CCTV footage proved that they were operating in breach of the conditions
imposed by the Licensing Sub Committee in May 2020 when their 2nd Full Variation
application was determined. There appeared to be some confusion over the conditions the
premises should be operating under. When I asked to see their licence, they showed me their
copy which was the one issued in January 2020, prior to the hearing. It soon became apparent
that they had not seen a copy of their current licence and had therefore not operated in
accordance with the newly added conditions. We discussed at length the conditions imposed
by the Licensing Sub Committee which aim at preventing public nuisance. PC Hopkins and I
made it very clear that this was their final warning, and that any further breach would leave us
no other option but to take enforcement action. Thanks to Mr Kavali’s help with the translation,
I am confident that both the licence holder and the DPS understood very clearly what was
discussed during the meeting which took place at lunch time.

2

A68

On the same day, however, later in the afternoon, an Officer witnessed 2 individuals sitting at
the outside tables consuming alcohol without any food.
As a result, a follow-up visit was carried out on 08/10/2020. During the visit, CCTV footage
was reviewed and it was established that the restaurant condition had been breached again.
In addition, current Covid regulations that require premises to operate table service only had
also been breached.
The Licensing Authority maintains an Enforcement Policy which advocates a stepped
approach when dealing with complaints or non-compliance. In the first instances we will seek
to work with businesses and operators to achieve compliance. Despite numerous warnings
and words of advice, Mr Mathimaran has continued to breach his premises licence. It is
therefore the view of the Licensing Authority that the premises licence holder has shown a
continued disregard for the terms and conditions of the premises licence and by operating the
venue unlawfully has failed to uphold the licensing objectives, in particular the prevention of
public nuisance and the prevention of crime and disorder.
Given that the premises licence holder is unable to comply with the conditions currently
attached to the licence, it is unlikely that imposition of further conditions would be complied
with.
I therefore support the review application made by the Metropolitan Police and I ask that this
premises licence be revoked.

Yours faithfully,

Marcella Basso
Environmental Protection Officer (Licensing)

3

07/12/2020

A69

ANNEX 3
RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Fwd: Laxmi - 90 Tolworth Broadway
1 message
RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
To: RBK Licensing <Licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

7 December 2020 at 13:14

---------- Forwarded message --------From:
Date: Thu, 3 Dec 2020 at 11:25
Subject: Laxmi - 90 Tolworth Broadway
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

To whom it may concern,
I have previously wri en about the noise from Laxmi. A ached is a noise diary which I was asked to
complete. Lockdown has meant I've been able to sleep be er, but as you can see from the a ached, as
soon as Laxmi reopened, normality resumed.
I personally have nothing against the business, I wish them sucess. However, I am constantly
disappointed by the noise and lack of commitment from the staﬀ to curb the ever-increasing an -social
noise outside their establishment. There is no considera on for residents who live surrounding and the
fact we have to get up early on live lives with very li le sleep due to their disturbance. I just want to be
able to sleep. That's all.
I hope a amicable solu on can be found
Many Thanks
I would like to note that I would not like my name or quotes in any local publica ons. Previously I was
quoted in a news story and Laxmi didn't react very well to this.

Noise Diary (1).doc
49K

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/1

ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES/LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON –
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOISE DIARY

COUNCIL USE ONLY

DATE ISSUED ............................
REFERENCE ..............................

Name of person keeping the diary:
Address:

..............................................................................

SHEET No. ..................................

........................................................................................

I certify that this diary is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I have recorded it knowing that if it is tendered in evidence I shall be liable to prosecution if
I have willfully stated in it anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Signed: ..............................................................
Date: ..................................................................
Address of where the noise is originating:……………Laxmi 90 Tolworth Broadway
Date

Start Time

Room affected

Type of noise

04/07/20

22:00 ish

bedroom

10/07/20

After
midnight

bedroom

19/07/20

21:30

23:00

bedroom

15/08/20

21:30

23:30

bedroom

25/08/20

After
midnight

Bedroom

29/08/20

After 11:00

bedroom

Customers outside shouting
and drinking , noise
Customers outside shouting
and drinking , noise
Customers outside shouting
and drinking , noise
Customers outside shouting
and drinking , noise Music from
restaurant
Customers outside shouting,
noise
Large groups outside shouting

30/08/20

After
midnight

Bedroom

Large groups outside shouting

24:20

Bedroom

Customers outside Drinking

31/08/20

20:30

How you were disturbed

Couldn’t sleep
Woken up
Couldn’t sleep , called restaurant
to manage it, nothing happened
Couldn’t sleep , called restaurant
to manage it, nothing happened
Woken up
Couldn’t sleep
Couldn’t sleep, called restaurant
to manage it, nothing happened
Couldn’t sleep

A70

End Time

04/09/20

23:15

?

Bedroom

06/09/20

20:15

23:45

Bedroom

Date

Start Time

End Time

Room affected

Customers outside shouting
and drinking , noise
Large groups outside drinking
noise. Music from restaurant

Woken up
Couldn’t sleep, called restaurant
to manage it, nothing happened

Type of noise

How you were disturbed

A71

08/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Licence Ref EH-LIC/043513

A72

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Licence Ref EH-LIC/043513
1 message
7 December 2020 at 20:59
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Dear,

Thanks
On Monday, December 7, 2020, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:
Dear
Many thanks for your email. In order to accept your representation I will require your full postal address. If you
could please ensure that it is provided by the end of the day on 8 December 2020 so that I might include your
support within the Committee papers.
Kind regards
Beckie
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Sat, 5 Dec 2020 at 21:48,
Dear,

> wrote:

I'm local resident staying in tolworth. I have tried having good food in Laxmi Restaurant,Tolworth.
Food has been amazing with nice ambiance, I really look visit again
Kind request to consider granting licence which is help having local food
Thanks
Disclaimers apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/info/200281/policies_and_statem
ents/1212/email_disclaimer)

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/1

15/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - RE: Ref: EH-LIC/043513 - Laxmi - 90 Tolworth Broadway Surbiton KT6 7HT

A73

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

RE: Ref: EH-LIC/043513 - Laxmi - 90 Tolworth Broadway Surbiton KT6 7HT
1 message
8 December 2020 at 15:08
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Thanks Beckie

I did read the details of what happened only after writing my email. From my experience lots of People never realise the
serious of the situation and sadly that sort behaviour described can kill off a business like this along with the staff and
owners.

My feeling is, hopefully you all should give them a chance and I am prepared to help to get the message across to the
owners and to the wider community

Kind regards

From: rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk <rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk> On Behalf Of RBK Licensing
Sent: 08 December 2020 09:00
To:
>
Subject: Re: Ref: EH-LIC/043513 - Laxmi - 90 Tolworth Broadway Surbiton KT6 7HT

Dear

,

Many thanks for your email. I will be in touch shortly after the deadline for representations passes with details of the
hearing at which the application will be determined.

Kind regards
Beckie

Licensing Team
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permthid…

1/3

15/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - RE: Ref: EH-LIC/043513 - Laxmi - 90 Tolworth Broadway Surbiton KT6 7HT

Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service

A74

Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Mon, 7 Dec 2020 at 23:22,

> wrote:

FAO: Rebecca Whelton
Environmental Protection Officer

Dear Sir/Madam

I refer to the above business and want to make a representation on the case.

I am a Chartered Management Accountant and lives at
since 1992. I and
my family are regular to this place and enjoy their food, drinks and the hospitality. I am also a Tamil from Sri Lanka
same as the owners of this place. I have worked very extensively with the Community issues in the UK with the
Scotland Yard, Foreign and Commonwealth Office and in the Parliament on a Cross Party basis.

Therefore I understand the difficulties of the owners in this matter. When I went to pick up my take away on Saturday
owners explained me the issues and felt genuinely sad about what happened.

I did talk to them about avoiding the same situation happening again and wanted to spend some time in the near future
to help them recover from this.

As an accountant I can assess the cost involved with developing a business and the cost of loosing the license which
is heart of the offering. I am confident by taking certain steps they can avoid this and happy to work with the Council
and Laxmi People to sort this out.

My kind request is to give them another chance to address the issues and resolve them. Stopping the license means
collapse of this business resulting in loss of jobs, loss of service to the community and running of a few families in this
difficult time. I am sure Council will understand the real pain this can cause and the resultant devastation to a young
entrepreneur

As I said, happy to meet you and Laxmi People to implement a plan to resolve this matter as I have experience in
resolving and rectifying gang related issues in and around London.
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permthid…

2/3

15/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - RE: Ref: EH-LIC/043513 - Laxmi - 90 Tolworth Broadway Surbiton KT6 7HT

A75

Kind regards

M:

Disclaimers apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/info/200281/policies_and_statements/1212/email_
disclaimer)

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permthid…

3/3

08/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Licence Review Laxmi Restaurant

A76

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Licence Review Laxmi Restaurant
1 message
7 December 2020 at 17:08
To: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
Respected Licensing Committee,
I am
I have been a resident at 90 Tolworth Broadway for the last 3 years, which is right
. I have never in my stay of 3 years experienced any sort of nuisance or disturbance. I would
also like to point out that the management always takes care that both the front & back of the restaurant are always
kept tidy, including bin area. In my opinion, Laxmi is one of the cleanest on the broadway. I have never faced any
issues with this business whatsoever.
My only concern being people buying alcohol from the off-licence stores, drinking, being loud at odd hours, unrinating
in the stariway and corners in the occasion of Laxmi not receiving its licence.
Please do consider my request and kindly proceed to do what you think is the best for this community.
Thank you.
Kindest Regards,

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/1

07/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Representation for Laxmi Tolworth

A77

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Representation for Laxmi Tolworth
1 message
>

4 December 2020 at 22:11

To: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
Hello there,
I am
a regular at Laxmi Restaurant Tolworth. I usually hang out at Laxmi with all
my mates to grab a drink as we all live in and around Tolworth. In all my days of hanging out I have not come across
anything problematic by people dining, and as this is the only place that has been inviting with an friendly ambiance to
grab a drink or two with a meal and most importantly it is a popular place for Srilankan community and their
surroundings to socialise.
I hope this information does you help in your decision.
Kindest Regards

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/1

23/11/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Laxmi

A78

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Laxmi
1 message
>
To: "Licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <Licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

22 November 2020 at 20:33

Dear whom it may concern,
I am writing to give my opinion on the application for a review of the premises licence for
Laxmi, Tolworth Broadway KT6 7HT.
Ref EH-LIC/043513
I was shocked and saddened to receive a letter about the review of the premises licence
for Laxmi.
Since the restaurant has opened it has brought alot to the community of Tolworth!
It has become a place where alot of my friends and family can come together for food and
drinks and feel welcomed and comfortable. We have missed Laxmi alot over lockdown.
Some of my family and friends are retired and look forward to our weekly meals in Laxmi
as it is there chance to venture out and socialize, there isn't many other places to go in
tolworth!
We have also enjoyed the culture that Laxmi has brought to tolworth. We have made
friends with many of the Sri Lankan community and learnt so much about the religion,
foods, traditions and overall culture. The celebration meals bringing a friendly atmosphere
enjoyed by all!
I have also enjoyed taking my boyfriends 8 and 10 year old girls into Laxmi to try out the
different foods. The staff were really friendly and helped them find something on the menu
they would enjoy. Also offering toffees once they were finished which went down well with
the girls!
I have also taken my nanny children into Laxmi on several occasions for the milkshakes,
which they loved. They all made friends with the waitor/waitress very quickly and had a
great time.
I would also like to include that I live
. We have no complaints of noise or public isance. We feel safer
knowing that we have such lovely neighbours downstairs and I'm sure alot of people
would agree!
Yours faithfully,

Get Outlook for Android
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wWYN0qBfMYuXmEcrR8bNyytZcv1nEFZZhgcZ5GG83eMOyC/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&…

1/2

15/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Restaurant: Laxmi subject: licensing

A79

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Restaurant: Laxmi subject: licensing
1 message
8 December 2020 at 19:52
To: Licensing@kingston.gov.uk
Dear sir/madam
I am writing to you tonight to express my willingness to give my opinion on the license to be able to serve alcohol with
food at the restaurant Laxmi (Tolworth Broadway)
I am not a permanent resident at this address because I am mostly posted to a different location with the house hold
division-British Army. This in hand when i am given scheduled leave this is the address I reside to :
and being so close to the restaurant I have come to often use the establishment for eating food and
drinking alcohol with family members and have had a wonderful time also to mention I have never seen or heard any
antisocial behaviour and I have never heard any noise from the residential area above. The staff are great and good with
the young elderly and disabled and to conclude I could not possibly think of anything negative to say. Thank you for taking
your time to read this.
Yours sincerely

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permthid…

1/1

07/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Review of premises licence- Laxmi

A80

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Review of premises licence- Laxmi
1 message
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Thank you Beckie. My address is
Kind regards

Sent from my iPad
On 7 Dec 2020, at 16:25, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear

,

Many thanks for your email. In order to accept your representation I will require your full postal address.
If you could please ensure that it is provided by the end of the day on 8 December 2020 so that I might
include your support within the Committee papers.
Kind regards
Beckie
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Mon, 7 Dec 2020 at 15:53,
Dear Sir

> wrote:

Friends have recently informed me that you are carrying out a review of Laxmi in Tolworth Broadway
and I would like you to take my views into consideration.
My wife and I have been using this restaurant on many occasions over the past four years and have
been made very welcome by the staff. As we are in our late 70’s we like to eat out local and have
found the Laxmi staff and customers to be friendly and polite. We enjoy the food and a glass(or two)
of wine.
The restaurant is very popular with the local Sri Lankin community and we have witnessed many
family celebrations.
Having been employed by the Metropolitan Police for 30 years I am happy to confirm that in all of our
visits we have never witnessed any rowdiness or trouble.
I do hope the above information assists you in your decision.
Yours sincerely
Sent from my iPad
Disclaimers apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/info/200281/policies_and_
statements/1212/email_disclaimer)

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/1

08/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Laxmi licence review

A81

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Laxmi licence review
1 message
8 December 2020 at 00:51
To: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
Dear Ms Whelton,
I hope you are well?
I live
with my wife and two children. I have never had any problems with the
noise management or the customers coming to dine in. In fact, quite the opposite. The owner, Paul, always makes
sure we are happy and makes sure we are never disturbed. There’s occasionally an issue with people drinking in the
alleyway we share but the staff at Laxmi always make sure to move them on- something we greatly appreciate. My
wife and I feel safe knowing there will never be any trouble coming from downstairs.
I hope this helps you,
Kind regards,

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/1

07/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Premises Licence Review - Laxmi 90 Tolworth Broadway KT6 7HT

A82

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Premises Licence Review - Laxmi 90 Tolworth Broadway KT6 7HT
1 message
7 December 2020 at 10:34
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
My address is
please feel free to contact me, I can be reached on my mobile

. Should you require any further information

Kind Regards

Sent from my iPad
On 7 Dec 2020, at 10:10, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear
Many thanks for your email. In order to accept your representation I will require your full postal address.
If you could please ensure that it is provided by the end of the day on 8 December 2020 so that I might
include your support within the Committee papers.
For information, the premises already benefits from a licence to serve alcohol, the application has been
submitted by the Police to seek the revocation of that licence following what they consider to be a
number of breaches of the conditions of the licence.
Kind regards
Beckie
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Sat, 5 Dec 2020 at 10:04,

> wrote:

Your Reference EH-LIC/043513
Please grant Laxmi a full Licence so that they can serve alcohol with the need to buy food.
This business in very well run and a service to the local community. Since the closure of the
Broadway Bar Cafe there is nowhere to get a drink in Tolworth and extending their licence
would address this issue
Yours faithfully
Local Resident
Disclaimers apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/info/200281/policies_and_
statements/1212/email_disclaimer)
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/2

07/12/2020

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Review of Premises Licence - Laxmi, 90 Tolworth Broadway, KT6 7HT

A83

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Review of Premises Licence - Laxmi, 90 Tolworth Broadway, KT6 7HT
1 message
>
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

7 December 2020 at 16:30

Thank you for your reply and I apologise for the omission.
My full address is:

With best wishes.

On Monday, 7 December 2020, 09:59:07 GMT, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:
Dear
Many thanks for your email. In order to accept your representation I will require your full postal address. If you could
please ensure that ti is provided by the end of the day on 8 December 2020 so that I might include your support within
the Committee papers.
Kind regards
Beckie
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Sun, 6 Dec 2020 at 16:14,
To whom it may concern

> wrote:

I have been made aware of the intention to review the Licence of the above premises due to the prevention of
public nuisance and disorder.
I would like to state that my family and I use this restaurant regularly and have never been aware of any disorder.
The staff and customers are always polite and respectful. It is a splendid restaurant with great food and ambiance.
What I would suggest is that you look more closely at the group of eastern European men, sometimes up to 10 or
more of them, which congregate outside the newsagents opposite Marks & Spencers. This I have noticed causes
much displeasure and worry to the public, including myself, and I have been witness to many an altercation there.
I trust you will look favourably and a very good family restaurant. It would be a big loss to Tolworth.
Thank you.
Disclaimers apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/info/200281/policies_and_statements/1212/email_
disclaimer)
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yxj_wT3-Y8v2cfOKGuUyk9HjQ0zxhkx3FDVKL3WSRUv6Ph/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/2

A84

ANNEX 4

A85

ANNEX 5

A86

ANNEX 6
Secretary of States Guidance (April 2018)
Reviews
11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises
licence or club premises certificate.
11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the
licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of
the four licensing objectives.
11.3 An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing
authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the application, if
the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance
that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these applications are
outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted via GOV.UK or
the licensing authority’s electronic facility.
11.4 In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it
relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or
disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its
determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the basis
that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.
11.5 Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises
licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply
for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene
early without waiting for representations from other persons. However, it is not expected
that licensing authorities should normally act as responsible authorities in applying for
reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These
individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their
own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to
expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls
within the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate
steps where the basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual
exploitation of children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the
area in which the premises are situated to make the application for review.
11.6 Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and applies
for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still achieved in this
process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined
previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing
authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a
separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities should
achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to
9.19 of this Guidance.
11.7 In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in
respect of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be

A87
relevant to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or
variation of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area
relating to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a
town centre, should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can
be positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would
allow for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of
complaints, including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its
closing time, could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct
incidents of crime and disorder around a particular public house.
11.8 Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, the authority
may consider whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact of licensed
premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the authority may also
consider whether it would be appropriate to include a special policy relating to cumulative
impact within its licensing policy statement. Further guidance on cumulative impact policies
can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance.
11.9 Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent
hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount to
an amplification of the original representation may not be made at the hearing.
Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees and
the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives this
requirement.
11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about
problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early
warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should
advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a
decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing
objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this
cooperation.
11.11 If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a responsible
authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local business or trade
association), before taking action the licensing authority must first consider whether the
complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance on
determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in Chapter 9 of
this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).
Repetitious grounds of review
11.12 A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:




a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined;
representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or
certificate was granted;
representations which would have been made when the application for the
premises licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the
prior issue of a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a
reasonable interval has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.

A88
11.13 Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to
review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence following
the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier occasion. It
is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as a reasonable
interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more than one review
originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation to a particular
premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar grounds save in
compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order.
11.14 The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a
licence or certificate within a 12 month period.
11.15 When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These
regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website
(www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative has
therefore been able to prepare a response.
Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review
11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.
11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any
further steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing
to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring that
the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be issued in
writing to the licence holder.
11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or in writing –
that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account when
considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may take into
account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been required to pay for
employing an illegal worker.
11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:




modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by
reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;
exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the
incidental live and recorded music exemption)

A89




remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider
that the problems are the result of poor management;
suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
revoke the licence.

11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these
causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response to
address the causes of concern that instigated the review.
11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal
and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual.
11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be an
inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review
hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives.
11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and
exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary
period of up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to
three months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only
be expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives
or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a
weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise to
the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action
to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.
Reviews arising in connection with crime
11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly
connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs
problems at the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or
stolen goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing
authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is
a matter for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is
not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective.
11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are
not part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of any
criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal courts of

A90
certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to determine
whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on the premises
and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review follows a
conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go beyond any
finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed evidence before
them.
11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the
premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps
should be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated
problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence
holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with the
conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is still
empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives and
the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not those of
the individual licence holder.
11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed premises:
for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 and
the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;












for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music,
which does considerable damage to the industries affected;
for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;
for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;
for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;
for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;
for unlawful gambling; and
for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to deter such
activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines
that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the premises
being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence – even
in the first instance – should be seriously considered.

A91
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (version 4 July 2016)
8.

The Council is responsible for licensing a range of activities related to the sale and
supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment and late night
refreshments.

9.

In carrying out its functions under the Act, the Licensing Authority has a duty to
promote the following licensing objectives:





11.

As well as the statutory objectives, the Act and guidance support a number of other
key aims and purposes linked to the licensable activities that are considered to be
vitally important. They include:






12.

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety
the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises
giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy
recognising the important role that pubs and other licensed premises play in our
communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises
providing a regulatory framework for alcohol that reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers them to make and enforce decisions about the most
responsible licensing strategies for their local area, and
encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may impact on them.

The Council must set out how it will promote the statutory objectives and support the
other key aims and purposes in a Statement of Policy and this must strike a
reasonable balance between different and sometimes competing aims, including
widening the choice and appeal of licensed premises and the development of culture
and protection of local residents.

COMMENTING ON APPLICATIONS (MAKING REPRESENTATIONS)
50.

The Authority recognises that the Act, and the Secretary of State’s Guidance,
specifies what matters it may take into consideration when determining whether any
representation made is relevant. This will include a consideration whether any
representation made is frivolous or vexatious (as defined by guidance).

51.

Though not specified by the relevant legislation or guidance, the Authority will only
consider representations received in writing, be this by letter, facsimile, e-mail or via
our online portal. Representations must be made within the relevant time period
specified in the Act for the application type being considered.

A92
APPLICATIONS FOR REVIEW
1.

Any Responsible Authority or other party may make an application for review in
respect of any granted licence where it becomes apparent that, because of some
matter arising at the premises, one or more of the licensing objectives are not being
promoted. Anyone seeking to apply for the review of a licence is advised to contact
the Licensing Team for advice on the application process.

2.

Following guidance, the Authority will not consider more than one application in any
12 month period for the review of a licence on the same or similar grounds, except in
exceptional and compelling circumstances such as continued disorder clearly
associated with the management of the premises. Similarly, more than one
application for review on the same or similar grounds will be accepted in the event of
expedited reviews or a review following a closure order.

3.

The Authority has delegated the function of determining whether requests for
Reviews should be rejected on the grounds that they are frivolous, vexatious or
repetitive to designated officers, who will consult with the Chair or Vice Chair of the
Licensing Committee.

LICENSING OBJECTIVE - PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
To prevent crime and disorder, the Licensing Authority will take into account
the following considerations, where relevant, in determining applications and
reviews:
4.

The Authority recognises that licensed premises, particularly late night venues, can
be a focus of crime and disorder problems. Therefore, whether the premises make,
or will make, a significant contribution to levels of crime and disorder, and whether
the Operating Schedule is based on an adequate risk assessment, undertaken by the
applicant, of the likelihood of crime and disorder occurring as a result of the grant of
the application is a key criterion.

5.

Applicants must clearly set out and explain in their Operating Schedule how the
operation of the premises will promote the prevention of crime and disorder. For pubs,
bars and premises with facilities for music and dancing (e.g. night clubs), a specific
assessment is needed as to how the risks of violence and crime in the premises and
within the vicinity will be managed.

6.

Where relevant representations are made, the Authority will tailor appropriate
conditions for premises licenses and club premises certificates. In doing so, the
Authority will treat the Police as a main source of advice on appropriate conditions for
particular premises.

7.

The Authority will carry out its licensing functions so as to promote the prevention of
crime and disorder, by ensuring that Licence Holders take measures to regulate the
behaviour of persons on the premises and patrons who are in the vicinity.

8.

The Authority acknowledges that it holds a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 to exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions on crime and disorder in the Borough and the need to do
all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder (including anti-social and other

A93
behaviour adversely affecting the local environment); the misuse of drugs, alcohol
and other substances and re-offending in the Borough.
PROOF OF AGE
9.

In October 2010 a Mandatory Condition came into force requiring premises with
Licences authorising the sale or supply of alcohol to implement an age verification
policy in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The condition requires that the policy
must incorporate measures to ensure that individuals who appear to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and a holographic mark.

10.

The Authority recognises and supports the “Challenge 25” campaign, whereby
anyone appearing to be under the age of 25 is asked to provide identification to
demonstrate they are over 18, before being sold alcohol. The authority expects all
holders of licenses permitting the sale of alcohol to implement and actively publicise
“No ID – No Sale” schemes, and encourages applicants to adopt current best practice
on age verification policies – “Challenge 25”.

11.

Licence Holders are expected to include within their age verification policy:




12.

documented training procedures to ensure staff are fully trained in age
verification procedures, including induction and regular refresher training with
signed records kept of that training.
use of till prompts in shops together with appropriate warning notices being
displayed at alcohol fixtures.
the use of refused sale records, which are regularly checked and signed off by
the Designated Premises Supervisor.

The Authority supports and recommends that premises accept identity cards bearing
the logo of the PASS accreditation scheme, which aims to approve and accredit
various proof of age schemes that are in existence and thereby ensures that such
schemes maintain high standards, particularly in the area of integrity and security.
Details of the PASS scheme are available from the Trading Standards Responsible
Authority [contact details available at Annex 1].

PUBWATCH AND RELATED INITIATIVES
13.

The Licensing Authority recognises the value of the co-ordination of premises through
schemes such as PubWatch, to help promote the licensing objectives and it therefore
encourages all licence holders to participate in and attend PubWatch meetings.

14.

In addition, licence holders are encouraged to formulate policies to counter anti-social
behaviour, drug dealing, violence and disorder. Participation in the Best Bar None
scheme is especially encouraged.

LICENSING OBJECTIVE - PUBLIC SAFETY
To promote public safety the Licensing Authority will take into account the
following considerations, where relevant, in determining applications and
reviews:

A94
15.

Whether appropriate and satisfactory general and technical risk assessments,
management procedures and certificates have been made available to the relevant
responsible authority and the licensing authority that demonstrate that the public will
be safe within and in the vicinity of the premises are the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

16.

The Authority must try to ensure the safety of people visiting and working in licensed
premises. It will therefore need to be satisfied that measures to promote public safety,
including risk assessments, setting safe capacities, adequate means of escape and,
where appropriate, CCTV are put in place and adequately maintained, if not provided
for by other regulatory regimes. As such, it is expected that applicants will
satisfactorily address these issues in their operating schedules and plans/drawings
submitted as part of the application process.

17.

The Authority is not in a position to impose conditions on licences that relate to fire
safety legislation, for whom the enforcing authority is the London Fire and Emergency
Planning Authority [LFEPA]. However, given that applications must be submitted to
LFEPA, who may make representations on applications which are not considered to
be demonstrating the promotion of public safety, applicants are advised to make
contact with their local fire safety officer for advice regarding measures to ensure
adequate fire protection and means of escape prior to the submission of applications.

18.

Whilst existing health and safety legislation will generally be sufficient to control risks
to the safety of the public in most premises, the Authority recognises that, in some
situations, statutory requirements may not be adequate, or be in place, to ensure
public safety. Where its right is invoked, the Authority may impose conditions
requiring the licence holder to take steps over and above minimum legal requirements
as may be necessary to ensure safety.

19.

It should be noted that conditions relating to public safety should be those that are
appropriate in the particular circumstances of any individual premises or club
premises, and should not duplicate other requirements of existing Health and Safety
Legislation. Equally, the attachment of conditions to a premises licence or club
premises certificate does not in any way relieve employers of their statutory duty to
comply with the requirements of primary Health and Safety or Fire Safety legislation.

20.

In addition to the points made in this section, applicants and responsible authorities
may wish to consider advice and guidance provided in a number of separate
publications and relevant British Standards, which may be of particular use in relation
to specific types of operation. Whilst a full list of helpful documents is given in the
Secretary of State’s Guidance, the following documents are considered to be
particularly beneficial:




HSG195 - The Event Safety Guide - A guide to health, safety and welfare at
music and similar events (HSE 1999) ("The Purple Book”) ISBN 9 7807 1762
4539
The London District Surveyors Association's "Technical Standards for Places
of Public Entertainment" ISBN 0 9531229 2 1
British Standards:
- BS 5588 Part 6 (regarding places of assembly)
- BS 5588 Part 9 (regarding ventilation and air conditioning systems)
- BS 5588 Part 9 (regarding means of escape for disabled people)
- BS 5266 (emergency lighting systems)

A95
21.

Applicants, in particular, should note that a substantial volume of guidance and advice
is also available free of charge from the Health and Safety Executive via their website
at www.hse.gov.uk

LICENSING OBJECTIVE - PUBLIC NUISANCE
To prevent public nuisance the Licensing Authority will take into account the
following considerations, where relevant, in determining applications and
reviews:
22.

The Borough has a substantial residential population and the authority has a
responsibility to protect it from nuisance. In certain locations, the increased
concentration of entertainment uses and longer hours of operation have adversely
affected local residents. Commercial occupiers of premises also have a legitimate
expectation of an environment that is attractive and help sustain their business. The
role of the Council as a licensing authority is to maintain an appropriate balance
between the legitimate aspirations of the entertainment industry and the needs of
residents, businesses, workers, shoppers and visitors.

23.

The potential for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of
the business to be carried on at the premises and the potential steps which could be
taken to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring are therefore the key criteria relevant
to this objective. This will particularly apply where there is residential accommodation
in the proximity of the premises.

24.

The Authority will expect applicants to set out in their Operating Schedules the steps
taken, or proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public nuisance arising
from the operation of the premises or open air site under the licence.

25.

Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these risks
will be managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance perhaps affecting
a small number of people living locally as well as major disturbance affecting the
whole community. It may include, in appropriate circumstances, a reduction of the
living and working amenity and environment of interested parties in the vicinity of
licensed premises.

26.

Eating and drinking outdoors is increasingly popular and the banning of smoking
inside premises has increased the number of people outside premises smoking or
accompanying smokers. The noise of people outside can cause public nuisance,
even if the individuals are well behaved. In addition, the blocking of footways, and
more occasionally roadways, by people standing around drinking and smoking is a
public nuisance whether or not it amounts to an offence of obstruction or becomes an
issue of public safety. The Authority will therefore encourage the management of
people standing outside premises to minimise the adverse effects on the licensing
objectives.

27.

Hours of opening and hours for each licensable activity must be included in the
Operating Schedule. Conditions will be attached on the hours when premises are
permitted to be open to the public or to members and their guests for the prevention
of public nuisance. Conditions may be appropriate to limit when certain licensable
activities take place, even though the premises might otherwise be open to the public
at these times. Conditions may also be applied referring to the parts of premises that
might be used for certain licensable activities at certain times. Stricter conditions

A96
should be expected in areas where there is a high proportion of residential
accommodation.
28.

Applicants should carefully consider the hours that they wish to operate each
licensable activity and when to close their premises for the entry of customers and
when to require them to leave. The Authority will similarly consider hours for
licensable activities and closing times and appropriate conditions. Applicants should
consider the benefits of stopping serving alcohol before other licensable activities
stop and a suitable time before the premises close and customers leave (“winding
down” period). In noise sensitive areas, operators should consider stopping playing
dance music and to switch to quieter, slower tempo music with a less pronounced
beat while other listenable activities continue.

29.

Applicants are encouraged not to apply for later hours than they will in fact operate,
particularly seeking 24 hour licenses where there is no intention of operating on this
basis. Responsible authorities will generally be more likely to make objections the
later the hour that licensable activities are proposed to take place.

30.

The consideration of hours of operation will be in the context of the particular
circumstances of each application and the licensable objectives of preventing crime
and disorder and public nuisance. The hours at which noise may occur and
disturbance of resident’s reasonable expectation of relaxation and sleep for
themselves (and for families with young children) will be of particular concern. For
example, conditions will generally be framed to ensure that closing hours on nights
when residents have to get up for work the next morning are earlier than on other
nights when they are less likely to do so.

31.

Conditions that might be applied to premises licenses include, maximum noise levels
over particular time periods, the installation of sound limiters, acoustic lobbies,
provision of signs, publicity and verbal advice to patrons to leave quietly and by
certain routes, controlling nuisance from light pollution, taking food or drink outside,
flyposting, distribution of leaflets, litter and cleaning of the frontage and in the vicinity
of the premises.

32.

Changes brought about by the Live Music Act 2013 mean certain performances of
live music are no longer considered a licensable activity and consequently cannot be
subject to conditions. Whilst existing conditions relating directly or indirectly to
performances of live music between 08:00 and 23:00 no longer have effect during
those times, licence holders are strongly recommended to continue to provide the
control measures those conditions require so as to demonstrate due diligence.

33.

The Environmental Protection Act 1990 and the Noise Act 1996 provide some
protection to the general public from the effects of noise and other statutory nuisances
arising from licensed premises. Conditions that promote good management practice
or otherwise promote the prevention of public nuisance residents will be applied in
respect of licensable activities where appropriate.

LICENSING OBJECTIVE - THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM
To protect children from harm, the Licensing Authority will take in to account
the following considerations, where relevant, in determining applications and
reviews:

A97
34.

The Authority supports the formation of family-friendly entertainment environments
and whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect children from harm
(including moral, psychological and physical harm) is the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

35.

Applicants are expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and implemented to protect children from
harm, having regard to the style, characteristics and activities of the premises and
the activities provided. The measures expected to be considered may include staff
training on how to control the entry of young people under 18 and the vetting of staff
who will supervise them. Applicants will have to give particular regard to these
measures in applications for licences involving:


the sale of alcohol



children’s performances



attractions or performances likely to attract children

36.

It is an offence to sell alcohol to children (under 18). There is a further specific offence
of persistently selling alcohol to children if sales are made on 2 or more occasions
within 3 months. Unaccompanied children under 16 should not be on “premises being
used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol” e.g. pubs, bars and nightclubs.
In addition, unaccompanied children under the age of 16 should not be allowed on
licensed premises between the hours of midnight and 5.00 am. Operating Schedules
should consider whether there will be circumstances when children under 16 should
not be on the premises and whether they were there for a specific purpose such as
partaking of a meal or being entertained by live performances and whether there were
any specific aspects of licensable or other activities taking place where children
should be excluded e.g. drinks promotions or particular types of performances or
competitions.

37.

Other than specific instances where the Act prohibits unaccompanied children on
licensed premises, it does not in itself prohibit the access by children to any type of
licensed premises. The Authority considers, therefore, that conditions prohibiting
access to a premises, or parts of premises, may be necessary in some
circumstances, particularly in premises where:






38.

There have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or where there is
evidence of underage drinking.
Entertainment of an adult (language, sexual imagery etc) nature is provided.
There is a strong element of Gambling (note: the Gambling Act 2005 also
provides for the protection of children from harm).
There is a known association with drug taking or dealing.
Where, be it after a certain time or otherwise, the predominant use of the
premises is for the consumption of alcohol on the premises.

These circumstances are not considered to be the only occasions when such
conditions may be appropriate, and as such, on receipt of representations from
responsible authorities or interested parties, the Authority may consider it necessary
to impose such conditions in other situations.

A98
39.

At premises and performances which are likely to attract a substantial number of
children, the Authority may attach conditions requiring the presence of a sufficient
number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the well-being of the children during
an emergency.

40.

No condition will be attached to any licence that requires the licence holder to admit
people under a specified age, unless such a condition is volunteered by an applicant.

41.

In 2015 a specific Safeguarding Children Policy for Licensed Premises was
developed and published by the Richmond and Kingston Local Safeguarding
Children Boards (LSCBs)* in association with the London Local Safeguarding
Children Board. It is intended to provide advice and guidance for all staff (paid or
unpaid) involved in premises which have been licensed under The Licensing Act
2003. It gives some basic information about what to do if you are concerned about a
child and how your local Children’s Social Care and Metropolitan Police Team will
respond to and deal with reports about children whose welfare is causing concern,
including:






Being alert to the possibility of child abuse and neglect, i.e. the definition,
prevalence, identifying features in a child or adult, legal parameters and social
consequences;
Having enough knowledge to recognise an abusive or potentially abusive
event or set of circumstances;
Knowing who in the organization to raise your concerns with,
Being competent in taking the appropriate immediate or emergency action,
and
Knowing how to make a referral to Social Services and/or the Police.
* Kingston Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB)
www.Kingstonlscb.org.uk 0208 547 4655

42.

Recommended best practice is for the owner/licence holder to nominate themselves
or a senior staff member to have the following responsibilities** in relation to
safeguarding children for the licensed premises – to:








Arrange safeguarding children training for all staff;
Monitor and report on whether all staff have received the minimum (initial and
refresher) safeguarding children training;
Ensure that all staff have read and know where to find this policy and the
Government Guidance: “What To Do If You’re Worried a Child is Being
Abused”;
Ensure that an up-to-date Safeguarding Children Procedures Poster is
displayed for all staff at all times;
Provide advice and support to staff when they have a concern about
safeguarding a child;
Record all concerns raised by staff; and
Be the contact person for the local Children’s Social Services and the Police
in relation to all incidents or concerns related to the safeguarding of children
on or linked to the premises.

** This list is not exhaustive

A99
43.

The LSCB has a statutory role to coordinate what is done by each person or body for
the purposes of safeguarding children and promoting the welfare of children in the
local area, and ensuring the effectiveness of this work.

RESPONSIBLE RETAILING
44.

The Authority expects all applicants and licence holders to recognise the
responsibility that the retail sale or supply of alcohol brings in order to promote the
licensing objective relating to the protection of children from harm.

